
TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTH 
MEETING 

11 eld at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, on 
Thursday, 19 August 1948, at 10 a.m. 

P1·esident: Dr. Charles MALIK 

53. Continuation of the discussion on 
the Report of the International 
Labour Organisation 1 (E/810, 
E/881 and E/973) 

The PRESIDENT reopened the discussion on the 
Report of the International Labour Organisation 
(E/810), and invited the New Zealand represen~ 
tative to continue the statement he had begun the 
previous day. 

Mr. THORN (New Zealand) referred first to the 
Soviet Union representative's assertion that the 
International Labour Organisation was ineffec
tive because its conventions had not been ratified. 
It was regrettable that the conventions had not 
been universally ratified, but that only proved 
that the Organisation was much further advanced 
in its ideas than the governments which had 
failed to ratify the conventions. Progressive 
men and women should not condemn the Organi
sation for that; they should rather criticize the 
govern.ments which had been at fault. Moreover, 
it was incorrect to claim that the conventions had 
not influenced the governments which had failed 
to ratify them; in many cases they had not been 
ratified because certain details were unacceptable, 
but the remainder of the conventions had influ
enced legislation. That was shown by the fact 
that workers' conditions had greatly improved 
since the Organisation had come into being in 
1919. The Organisation was not, of course, 
entirely responsible for that improvement, but 
it had played a great. part in economic and 
social progress. 

1 ""' 
In many parts of the world trade unions had 

expressed their approval of the activities of the 
International Labour Organisation; but the 
Soviet Union representative had said that trade 
unionists in the Organisation wer.e in the un
happy position of being dominated by employers. 
That statement was not in accordance with the 
views expressed by trade union leaders in coun
tries such as New Zealand, where members of the 
trade union movement had the right· to express 
their opinions freely. 

He had before him numerous announcements 
by trade union leaders expressing approval of the 
activities of the Organisation; he would not take 
up the Council's time by quoting from more than 
three or four of them, but would willingly make 
th·em all available to the Soviet Union represen
tative. 

I Resumed from the 203rd meeting. 

DEUX CENT CINQUIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le jeudi 19 aout 1948, a 10 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK 

53. Suite de la discussion du rapport 
de !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail 1 (E/810, E/881 et E/973) 

Le PRESIDENT rouvre la discussion sur le rap
port de !'Organisation internationale du Travail 
(E/810) et invite le representant de la Nouvelle
Zelande a poursuivre l'expose qu'il avait com-
mence la veille. . 

M. THORN (Nouvelle-Zelande) .revient d'abord 
sur !'affirmation du representant de l'Union sovie
tique selon laquelle l'amvre de }'Organisation 
internationale du Travail serait. inefficace puis
que les conventions elaborees par elle n'ont pas 
ete ratifiees. II est certainement regrettable que 
les conventions n'aient pas ete universellement 
ratifiees, mais cela prouve setuement que !'Orga
nisation va beaucoup plus loin dans ses idees que 
les gouvernements des pays qui n'ont pas ratifie. 
Les 'hommes et les femmes epris de progres ne 
devraient pas, de ce chef, condamner !'Organi
sation; ils devraient plut6t critiquer·Ies gouver
nements sur lesquels en retombe la faute. En 
outre, il est inexact de soutenir que les conven
tions n'ont pas eu d'influence sur les gouverne
ments qui ne les ont pas ratifiees; dans bien 
des cas, on n'a pas ratifie certaines conventions 
parce qu'elles contenaient certains details inac
ceptables, mais le reste des conventions a influe 
sur la legislation. Ce qui le prouve, c'est que les 
conditions de vie des travailleurs se sont serieu
sement ameliorees depuis la creation de !'Orga
nisation en 1919. II est vrai que le merite de 
cette amelioration ne revient pas entierement a 
l'Orrg~nisation, bien qu'elle ait joue un grand role 
dans le progres economique et social. 

Dans bien des parties du monde, les syndicats 
ont exprirrie leur approbation de l'activite de 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail; le 
representant de l'Union sovietique a cependant 
declare que les syndicalistes de l'Orgimisation 
se trouvent dans la situation facheuse d'etre 
domines par les employeurs. C'est la une decla
ration qui ne concorde pas avec l'opinion qu'ont 
exprimee les chefs syndicalistes, dans des pays 
tels que la Nouvelle-Zelande, ou les membres du 
mouvement syndical ont le droit d'exprimer libre
ment leUr avis. 

II a sons les yeux de nombreuses declarations 
de chefs syndicalistes qui expriment leur appro
bation de I 'activite de I' Organisation; il ne pren
dra le temps du Conseil que pour citer ·trois ou 
quatre d'entre elles, mais se fera un plaisir de 
les mettre toutes a la disposition du representant 
de l'Union sovietique. 

1 Reprise de la disCUGSion cle la 203• seance. 

484 



No one could deny that Mr. Leon Jouhau .. x was 
a trade unionist of international repute, who had 
given many years of his life to the promotion of 
trade unionism in France. At the 26th meeting 
of the French General Confederation of Labour 
held in Paris in April1946, Mr. J ouhaux, speak
ing of the Confederation's interests in social pro
gress, had referred to the International Labour 
Organisation and urged that the Confederation 
should adopt as its own the principles proclaimed 
by that Organisation at the Philadelphia Confe
rence in May 1944. He had explained that one 
of those principles was that economic considera
tions should not take precedence over social consi
derations. 

Mr. Louis Saillant, General Secretary of the 
-world Federation of Trade Unions, addressing 
Norwegian trade unionists at Oslo, had stated 
that the World Federation of Trade Unions sup
ported the International Labour Organtsation, 
and would do everything in its power to enable 
the Organisation to fulfil its task, which was to 
promote social progress all over the world. 

At the 51st Annual Scottish Trade ·Union 
· Congress in Perth, in April 1948, Mr. John 
Sullivan had assured the International Labour 
Organisation of the continued support .. of the 
Congress. 

In New Zealand, practically all the trade 
unions were affiliated to the National Federation 
of Labour, which in turn was affiliated to the 
World Federation of Trade Unions. With only 
three exceptions, all the trade unions in N e~ 
Zealand were registered under an Act which had 
been on the Statute Book for 53 years. The pur
pose of that act, as stated in its provisions, was to 
foster and encourage ·the formation of trade 
unions. The population of New Zealand was 
approximately 1,800,000 persons, of whom 
approximately 275,000 were members of trade 
unions. The lOth Annual Conference of the 
New Zealand Federation of Labour, held in 
June 1947, had endorsed the report of the New 
Zealand workers' delegate who had attented the 
29th Session of the International" Labour Confe:O 
renee held at Montreal in 1946. That report, 
which had been transmitted to the Government, 
recommended that the question of New Zealand's 
representation on appropriate industrial commit
tees of the International Labour Organisation 
should be investigated by the Government, and 
the views of the industries concerned should be 
sought. The Government had also been urged to 
publicize the value and the work of the Inter
national Labour Organisation. 

That report, and all the other documents he 
had before him, provide~ evidence which clearly 
refuted the statement of the Byelorussian repre
sentative that the International Labour Organi
sation, with its many existing deficiencies, could 
not attract the support of workers. It appeared 
that the Byelornssian and Soviet Union represen
tatives were out of step with the trade union 
movement in a great part of the world. 

In May 1948 the World Federation of Trade 
Unions had entered into an agreement with the 
International Labour Organisation. Clause 3 of 
the relevant resolution provided that "as far as 
possible the International Labour Organisation 

Nul ne pent nier queM. Leoti Jouhaux soit un 
syndicaliste de reputation int~rnationale, qui a 
consacre de nombreuses annees de sa vie au deve
loppement du syndicalisme en France. Au 
26• Congres de la Confederation generale du 
Travail, tenu a Paris en avril1946, M. Jouhaux, 
parlant de l'interet que la Confederation porte 
au progres social, a mentionne !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail eta insiste pour que la 
Confederation fasse siens les principes que cette 
Organisation a proclames a la Conference de 
Philadelphie, en mai 1944. Il a explique que 
l'un de ces principes etait que les considerations 
d'ordre economique ne doivent pas passer avant 
les considerations d'ordre social. 

S 'adressant aux syndicalistes norvegiens a Oslo, 
M. Louis Saillant, Secretaire general de la Fede
ration syndicale mondiale, a declare que cette 
Federation soutient !'Organisation internationale 
du Travail et fera tout ce qui est en son pouvoir 
pour lui permettre de remplir sa mission, qui 
est de favoriser le progres social dans le monde 
en tier. 

Au 51• congres annuel des Syndicats ecossais, 
a Perth, en avril 1948, M. John Sullivan a assure 
!'Organisation internationale dn Travail de 
l'appui constant dn congres. 

En Nonvelle-Zelande, presque tons les syndi
cats sont affilies a la Federation nationale dn 
Travail qui, a son tour, est affiliee a la Federation 
syndicale mondiale. A trois exceptions pres, tons 
les syndicats neo-zelandais sont reconnus en vertn 
d'nne loi qui figure dans le Statute Book depuis 
53 ans. Le but de cette loi est de favoriser et 
d'enconrager la creation de syndicats. La popu
lation de la Nouvelle-Zelande atteint pres de 
1.800.000 habitants, dont 275.000 environ sont 
affilies a des syndicats. La 10• conference annuelle 
de la Federation neo-zelandaise dn Travail, tenue 
en juin 1947, a appronve le rapport dn repre
sentant des travaillenrs neo-zelandais qui avait 
assiste a la 29• session de la Conference inter
nationale du Travail, tenne a Montreal en 1946. 
Ce rapport, qui a ete communique ensnite an 
Gouvernement, recommandait notamment que le 
Gouvernement etudiat la question de la repre
sentation de la Nouvelle-Zelande aux Commis
sions d'industrie appropriees de !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail et qu'on s'informat de 
!'opinion des industries interessees. On avait 
demande aussi an Gouvernement de faire 
connaitre dans le public l 'interet et l 'reuvre de 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail. 

Ce rapport, et tons les autres documents que 
l'orateur a sons les yeux, refutent clairement 
l 'affirmation du representant de la Bielorussie, 
qui affirme que !'Organisation internationale dn 
Travail, avec ses nombreux de:fauts actuels, ne 
saurait s'attirer l'appui des travailleurs. II 
semble que les representants de la Bielorussie et 
de I 'Union sovietique ne marchent pas au meme 
pas que les syndicalistes d 'nne grande partie dn 
monde. 

En mai 1948, la Federation syndicale mondiale 
a conclu un accord avec !'Organisation interna
tionale dn Travail. Au paragraphe 3 de la reso
lution adoptee a cet effet, il est dit que, dans la 
mesure du possible, « l'Organisation interna-

485 



and the World Federation of Trade Unions shall 
try to establish mutual permanent consultation". 
If the International Laboui· Organisation was. as· 
futile as the Soviet Union representative thought 
it to ·be, why should the World Federation of 
Trade Unions wish to establish permanent rela
tions with it ? It was clear that it wished to do 
so because the International Labour Organisation 
did make an effective contribution to social pro-
gress. · 

The Soviet Union representative had urged that 
the rights of employers should be reduced. The 
representative of Poland, at the recently con
cluded International J_~abour CDnference at San 
Francisco, had proposed that in each article of 
the Convention on Freedom of Association, the 
part concerning employers rights should be de
leted. The representation of the three elements, 
employers, governments and workers, was so fun. 
damental in the constitution of the Organisation 
that it made the Polish representative's amend
ments irrational; so irrational in fact, that prac
tically all the workers' representatives had voted 
against them. In New Zealand employers had 
rights, which the Government encouraged them 
to exercise. It 1vas irrational to urg·e that the 
rights of employers should be reduced, or taken 
away altogether. In fact, several employers' 
representatives, such as Sir John Forbes "\Vatson 
(United Kingdom), were far more advanced in 
their ideas than some of the government repre
sentatives. Employers, as well as workers, 
should be treated fairly and permitted to exer
cise their rights. 

The Soviet Union representative had claimed 
that he (Mr. Thorn) had been partly instrumen
tal in bringing about the decisions of the Inter
national Labour Confer-ence on the question of 
equal pay for equal work: He pointed out that 
he had not attended the meetings of the Committee 
'vhich had dealt with that question, and had been 
compelled to leave the Conference in order to 
attend the current session of the Couneil, before 
the subjecthad been discussed by the Conference 
in plenary. 

He could not understand the anxiety expressed 
by the Soviet Union representative, since all the 
relevant decisions taken by the International 
Labour Conference (E/8S1) favoured the prin
ciple of equal pay for equal work. The Confe
rence had invited the Governing Body "to place 
on the agenda of the earliest possible session of 
the Conference, preferably the next generttl ses
sion, with a view to the adoption of appropriate 
international regulations, the question of equal 
remuneration for men. and women workers for · 
work of equal value". The Conference ha.d 
requested the Governing. Body "to take such 
further action as may be appropriate to promote 
the solution of the various problems involved in 
the application, in the case of men and women 
workers. of the principle of equal remuneration 
for work of equal value, with a view to secur
ing a more widespread and effective application 
of this principle". 

tionale du Travail et la Federation syndicale 
mondiale s'efforceront d'etablir 1m. systeme de 
consultations mutuelles permanentes ». Si l'action · 
de !'Organisation internationale du Travail etait 
aussi vaine que le pense le representant de 

· l'Union sovietique, pourquoi la Federation syndi
cale mondiale souhaiterait-elle nouer avec elle 
des relations permanentes ? II est evident que si 
la Federation veut etablir ces relations, c'est 
parce que !'Organisation internationale du Tra
vail apporte une contribution effective au progres 
social. 

I_~e representant de l'Union sovietique a insiste 
pour qu'on restreigne les droits des em
ployeurs. A la Conference internationale dn 
Travail de San-Francisco, qui s'est terminee 
recernment, le representant de la Pologne a pro
pose que, dans chacun des articles de la convene 
tion sur la liberte syndicale, on supprime la partie 
qui concerne les droits des employeurs. La repre
sentation des trois elements, employeurs, gouver
nements et travailleurs, est tellement essentielle 
pour la composition de !'Organisation qu'elle 
enleve. toute raison aux amendements du repre
sentant de la Pologne; cela est d~ailleurs si vrai 
que presque tons les representants des travail
leurs ont vote contre. En Nouvelle-Zelande, les 
employeurs ont des droits, que le Gouvernement 
les encourage a exercer. Il est deraisonnable 
d 'insister pour .nne restriction des droits des 
employeurs, ou pour leur suppression totale. A 
vrai dire, plusieurs representants des employeurs, 
comme, par exemple, Sir John Forbes Watson 
(Royaume-Uni), ont des idees beaucoup plus 
avancees que certains representants gouver)}e
mentau.'\:. Tout comme les travailleurs, les 
employeurs doivent etre traites equitablement et 
pouvoir exercer leurs droits. 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a sou
tenu que l'orateur avait contribue en partie a 
l'adoption des decisions de la Conference interna
tionale du Travail, en ce qui concerne la question 
de l'egalite de salaire pour un travail egal. 
M. Thorn fait remarquer qu'il n'a pas assiste 
aux seances du Comite qui s'est occupe de la 
question et qu'il a dfr quitter la Conference 
pour assister a la session actuelle du Conseil, 
avant que la Conference n'efrt discute cette ques
tion en seance pleniere. 

Il ne peut com prendre I 'inquietude manifestee 
par le representant de l'Union sovietique, puisque 
toutes les decisions qu'a adoptees, dans ce 
domaine, la Conference internationale du Tra
vail (E/881) sont favorables au principe ·: « A 
travail egal, salaire egal ». La. Conference a 
invite le Conseil d'adm,inistration a inscrire a 
l'ordre du jour de la session de la Conference 
la plus proche possible, de preference de la pro
chaine session ,generale, la question de « l'egalite 
de remuneration, pour un travail de valeur 
egale, entre la main-d'amvre masculine et femi
nine >-', en vue de l'adoption d'une reglementation 
internationale 3:ppropriee. La Conference a invite 
le Con.seil d'administration « a prendre toute 
autre mesure appropriee pour faciliter la solu
tion des divers problemes souleves par !'applica
tion... du principe de l'egalite de remuneration 
pour un travail de valeur egale, en vue d'assurer 
nne application plus etendue et efficace de ce 
principe »., 

486 



The Government of New Zealand believed in 
equal pay for equal work; in fact it had been 
working and fighting :for that principle. In the 
New Zealand Parliament, the opposition also 
believed in it. But there were practical diffi
culties in the way of its immediate and complete 
application; even the representative of the Soviet 
Union would admit that such difficulties existed 
in his country. In New Zealand, economic and 
social progress was determined by historical and 
1ilaterial conditions, but was also governed by the 
"inevitability of gradualness", a phrase coined 
by Sidney Webb. 

Mr. DrcH (Denmark) observed that the Soviet 
Union draft resolution (E/973) raised the impor
tant question of amending the Constitution and 
altering the structure of the International Labour 
Organisation. The Council could not usefully 
discuss such an important question at the current 
session. That had been borne out by the debate 
which had so far taken place. 

The International Labour Conference itself was 
the only body which could take the decisions 
urged by the Soviet Union representativ-e, More
over, the Danish delegation, and presumably 
many others, did not have the necessary govern
mental instructions to enable them to discuss the 
subject usefully at that session. 

He was aware that the Soviet Union delega
tion had taken the opportunity of raising the 
matter in the CoUil.cil because the Soviet Union 
was not a member of th-e International Labour 
Organisation. The :fact that it had raised the 
matter showed that it was interested in the work 
of the Organisation and did not consider it use
less. He asked whether the Soviet Union dele
gation had raised the matter with a view to 
changes in the Organisation's structure and Con
stitution which would enable the Soviet Union to 
become a member. If that was not the reason, 
there was no point in making the proposed 
changes, since they would not help the Organi
sation in its work. But if it was true that the 
Soviet Union wished to join the International 
Labour Organisation, provided certain changes 
were made, then the proposed changes should be 
discussed at a subsequent session of the Council, 
after delegations had been able to obtain the 
requisite instructions from their governments. 

Mr. ALTMAN (Poland) said that he attached 
great importance to the debate on the structure 
and activities of the International Labour Orga
nisation. The issue was really one of interna
tional co-operation in matters concerning the life 
of the workers. That issue should be approached 

· in a spirit of calmness. 
It was hardly necessary, he said, to recall that 

his Government had· at all times attached great 
value to international co-operation in these mat
ters. His Government would like to see the 
International Labour Organisation modernized 
and made more democratic, so as to enable it to 
de~1 with the social problems arising at a time of 

Le Gouvernement de la N ouvelle-Zelande est 
convaincu de l'utilite de l'egalite de remunera
tion pour un travail egal; il a meme travaille 
et lutte pour ce principe. Au Parlement neo
zelandais, !'opposition, elle aussi, reconnait la 
valeur de ce principe. Mais il y a des difficultes 
d'ordre pratique a l'appliquer immediatement 
de :Eagon integrale; le representant de l 'Union 
sovietique reconnaitra lui-meme que ces diffi
cultes existent dans son propre pays. En Nou
velle-Zelande, le progres economique et social 
est fonction des conditions historiques et mate
rielles, mais il est regi aussi par « la fatalite du 
graduel », pour reprendre la formule de 
Sidney Webb. 

M. DrcH (Danemark) fait remarquer que le 
projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique (E/973) 
souleve l'importante question de l'amendement 
de la Constitution de !'Organisation interna
tionale du Travail et de la modification de sa 
structure. Le Conseil ne saurait utilement dis
cuter une question de cette importance a sa 
session actuelle. On a pu s'en convaincre au 
cours du debat qui vient d'avoir lieu. 

La Conference internationale du Travail elle
meme est le seul organe qui puisse prendre les 
decisions pour lesquelles insiste le representant 
de l'Union sovietique. En outre la delegation 
danoise, comme probablement plusieurs autres, 
n'a pas regu de son Gouvernement les instruc
tions qui lui permettraient de discuter utilement 
la question a la session actuelle. 

II sait que la delegation de l'Union sovietique 
a saisi !'occasion d'evoquer cette question devant 
le Conseil, parce que I 'Union sovietique n'est 
pas membre de !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail. Le fait qu'elle ait souleve cette question 1 

preuve qu'elle s'interesse au travail de !'Organi
sation et qu'elle ne le juge pas inutile. Il demande 
si la delegation de l'Union sovietique a evoque 
la question pour faire apporter a la structure 
et a la Constitution de !'Organisation des modi
fications qui permettraient a l'Union sovietique 
d'en devenir membre. Si tel n'est pas le cas, il 
n'y a pas de raison de proceder aux modifications 
proposees, car elles n'aideront pas !'Organisation 
dans son travail. Mais s'il est vrai que l'Union 
sovietique tient a faire partie de l'Organisation 
internationale du Travail a condition que l'on 
procede a certaines modifications, il :faudrait 
alors discuter les modifications proposees a une 
session ulterieure du Conseil, quand les delega
tions auront pu obtenir de leurs gouvernements 
respectifs les instructions. necessaires. 

M. ALTlVIAN (Pologne) declare qu'il attache une 
tres grande importance au debat sur la structure 
et l'activite de !'Organisation internationale 
du Travail. II s 'agit la en effet d'une question 
de cooperation internationale dans des domaines 
qui interessent la vie des travailleurs. II 
faut aborder ce probleme avec calme. 

II est a peine necessaire, poursnit-il, de rap
peler que le Gouvernement polonais a de tout 
temps attache un grand prix a la cooperation 
internationale dans ce domaii1e. Le Gouverne
ment polonais voudrait que. l'on modernise et 
democratise !'Organisation internationale du Tra
vail pour lui permettre de faire face aux pro-

487 



vast economic and social changes. Ever since 
1945 the Polish Governmm'lt had persistently 
asked for such reform. 

Amongst the United Nations specialized agen
cies the International Labour Organisation occu
pied a special position, inasmuch as employers 
and worlrers were represented in it side by side 
with governments. It was also the, only organ of 
the old League of Nations which had survived the 
Second World War, and it retained the features 
peculiar to the agencies of the League. Its 
structure was the logical outcome of the social 
conditions prevailing at the time of its inception. 
Modern conditions required a new tripartite 
structure which took into consideration the 
evolution of the working classes and the econo
mic changes which had occurred. The crux of 
the problem was the fundamental difference 
between the employer-employee relationship as 
it had existed in 1919 and as it was· at the pre
sent time. 

The founders of the International Labour 
Organisation had proceeded from the idea that 
relations between employers and employees were 
regulated by contract at private law between two 
parties equal in status, but with conflicting in
terests, the government being the impartial 
arbitrator reconciling those interests. In prac
tice a government was never impartial since it 
TI'presented economic and hence political power. 
Under modern conditions the two-party system 
of regulating relations between employers and 
workers seemed entirely mistaken. 

In capitalist countries the social and economic 
dependency of those whose standard of living 
depended on a labour contract robbed them of 
their freedom. In socialist countries there could 
be no question of any conflict between the in
terests of ·employers and employees, ·for the 
·employers were nationalized undertakings whose 
economic aims were to satisfy the economic needs 
of the country generally. In such countries it 
would be more correct to speak of I'elations be
tween the workers and the community as a whole. 

While the International Labour Organisation 
had already revised its Constitution, the proposals 
to change the membership of the General Confer
ence and of the Governing Body had never come 
to anything. Essentially, the structure was still 
exactly the same as provided in the Treaty of 
Versailles. 

He felt bound to say that the consistent oppo
sition to any adaptation of the Organisation's 
structure to suit modern requirements had come 
primarily from employers. They were there to 
defend an obsolete past. It was owing ·to em
ployers, and to some Governments, that this 
respect for the obsolete persisted in the Interna
tional Labour Organisation. 

In 1945-1946 the Polish Government had taken 
the initiative in proposing an increase in the 
workers' representation. As usual its sugges
tions had been countered by the argument of 
quieta non movere. 

It had been said by some workers' representa
tives, and by representatives of the democratic 
governments, that unless the International 

blemes sociaux qui se posent dans une epoque 
de grandes transformations economiques· et 
sociales. Depuis 1945, il n'a cesse de demander 
cette reforme. 

Parmi les institutions speciaiisees des Nations 
Unies, l 'Organisation internationale du Travail 
occupe une situation particuliere du fait que les · 
employeurs et les travailleurs y sont representes 
a cote des gouvernements. C'est aussi le seul 
organisme de l'ancienne Societe des Nations qui 
ait survecu a la deuxieme guerre mondiale et 
elle garde les caracteristiques propres aux insti
tutions de la Societe des Nations. Sa structure 
est la consequence logique des conditions sociales 
qui regnaient lorsqu 'elle a ete creee. Les condi
tions actuelles exigent nne nouvelle structure tri
partite qui tienne compte de !'evolution du monde 
ouvrier et des changements economiques qui se 
sont produits. Le fond du probleme est la diffe
rence fondamentale qui separe les relations entre 
employeurs et salaries telles qu'elles existaient 
en 1919 de celles qui existent aujourd'hui. 

Les fondateurs de l'011ganisation internationale 
du Travail sont partis de l'idee que les relations 
entre employeurs et. ouvriers etaient regies par 
un contrat .de droit prive conclu entre les deux 
parties de condition egale mais d'interets oppo
ses, le gouvernement etant l'arbitre impartial qui 
concilie ces interets. En pratique, un gouverne
ment n'est jamais impartial, parce qu'il repre
sente le pouvoir economique et, par consequent, 
le pouvoir politique. Aujourd'hui, le systeme 
bipartite de reglementation des relations entre 
employeurs et ouvriers semble constituer une 
erreur complete. 

Dans les pays capitalist(ls, la dependance 
sociale et economique ou se trouvent ceux dont 
les conditions d 'existence dependent d'un contrat 
de travail leur enleve leur liberte. Dans les pays 
socialistes, il ne saurait etre question de conflit 
entre les interets des employeurs et des travail
leurs, car les employeurs sont des entreprises 
nationalisees dont le but economique est la satis
faction des besoins economiques generaux de la 
nation. Dans ces pays, il est plus exact de parler 
des relations entre les travailleurs et !'ensemble 
de la collectivite. 

L'Organisation internationale du Travail a 
bien deja revise sa Constitution, mais les propo
sitions tendant a modifier la composition de la 
Conference et du Conseil d'administration n'ont 
jamais abouti a un resultat. Sa structure reste 
essentiellement la meme que celle qu'avait prevue 
le Traite de Versailles. 

Il doit dire que ce sont avant tout les 
employeurs qui se sont constamment opposes a 
!'adaptation de la structure de !'Organisation 
aux exigences nouvelles. Ils sont la pour defendre 
un passe revolu. C'est grace aux employeurs et 
a certains gouvernements que subsiste dans 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail ce res
pect de ce qui est perime. 

En 1945-1946, le Gouvernement polonais a 
pris !'initiative de proposer !'augmentation de 
la representation ouvriere. Comme toujours, on 
a alors fait valoir des arguments en faveur de 
l'immobilite perpetuelle. 

Des delegues ouvriers et des delegues des goil
vernements democratiques ont declare que si 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail ne se 

488 



Labour Organisation changed, it would end up 
by ·becoming a second-class bureaucratic .insti
tution. 

It was because it stood for international co-ope
ration in the protection of. the workers that the 
Polish delegation at the San Francisco Confe
rence had again raised the question of structural 
reform of the Organisation. His delegation con
sidered that so long as the structure had not been 
changed and the membership of the General Con
ference and the Governing Body so modified as 
to guarantee the workers voting strength equal 
to that of employers and governments, the Orga
nisation would remain open to the same criti
cism. 

That reform was the aim of the Soviet Union 
proposal before the Co1mcil. He associated him
self with that proposal because he wished the 
International Labour Organisation to continue in 
existence. 

He then turned to the New Zealand repr.esen
tative's observations on the Convention on Free
dom of Association adopted at San Francisco. 
The New Zealand representative had declared 
himself very satisfied with the results achieved; 
he (Mr. Altman) regretted that he could not 
share that satisfaction. The New Zealand repre
sentative would doubtless recall that the Polish 
and Czechoslovak delegations, among others, had 
not voted for that Convention, for which the 
workers' group had shown no enthusiasm either. 

He was aware of no occasion on wich employ
ers had had to seek the protection of interna
tional organizations; but he· knew of many cases 
in which employers, with the support of the 
administrative authorities, had exerted pressure 
on the workers. 

The fact that the International Labour Orga
nisation put the protection of employers and 
workers on the same level shook any faith the 
workers might have in the potential efficacy of 
that Organisation. 

The New Zealand representative had denied 
that the workers' representation in the Interna
tional Labour Organisation was 13quivalent to 
one-quarter of the votes, since t],lat representa
tion was increased by the votes of certain govern
ment representatives, . such as those of New Zea
land and Australia. He himself did not consi
der that argument very convincing. The great 
majority of governments represented the econo
mic and social interests ·of the employers, and 
government representatives frequently supported 
employers' representatives. 

So long as that state of affairs continued, cri
ticisms would be justified, and he would continue 
to have doubts as to whether minority represen
tation of the workers was in keeping with the 
functions of the International Labour Organisa
tion. 

Finally, in his eulogy of the American capi
talist system, the United States representative liad 
suggested thatthe International Labour Organi
sation should study the problem of protection 
of workers· in countries where undertakings 
were nationalized or where the State was the sole 
employer; he had expressed doubts regarding the 
protection afforded to workers and the mobility 

transformait pas, elle finirait par devenir une 
institution. 9,ureaucratique de deuxieme ordre. 

C'est parce qu 'elle. est attachee a la coopera
tion internationale dans -le · domaine de la protec
tion des travailleurs qu'a la Conference de San 
Francisco, la delegation polomiise a de nouveau 
pose ·la question de la reforme · structurale de 
!'Organisation. Elle considere que, taut qu'on ne 
sera pas parvenu a changer cette structure et 
a modifier la composition de la Conference gene
rale et du Conseil d'Administration de fa~on a 
garantir aux travailleurs l'egalite des voix avec 
les employeurs et les gouvernements, !'Organi
sation continuera de preter aux memes critiques. 

·C'est cette reforme qui est l'objectif de la 
proposition sovietique dont le Conseil est saisi. 
Le delegue de la Pologne s'associe a cette pro
position parce qu'il veut que l'Organi<;;ation inter
nationale du Travail subsiste. 

Il passe ensuite aux observations du repre
sentant de la Nouvelle-Zelande, relatives a la 
Convention sur la liberte syndicale adoptee a 
San Francisco. Ce representant s'est declare tres 
satisfait des resultats obtenus; M. Altman 
regrette de ne pas pouvoir partager cette satis
faction. Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande 
se rappellera sans doute que la delegation de 
la Pologne et celle de la Tchecoslovaquie, parmi 
d'autres, n'ont pas vote pour cette Convention, 
a l'egard de laquelle le groupe ouvrier n'a mani
feste non plus aucun enthousiasme. 

L'orateur ne connait pas d'occasion ou les 
employeurs aient eu a recourir a la protection 
d 'organisations internationales, mais il connait 
de nombreux cas ou les employeurs out, avec 
l'appui des autorites administratives, exerce une 
pression sur les ouvriers. 

Le fait que !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail met sur le meme plan la protection des 
employeurs et celle des ouvriers porte un coup 
a la confiance que les travailleurs peuvent mettre 
·dans les possibilites d'action de cette organisation. 

Le repr~sentant de la Nouvclle-Zelande a nie 
que la representation des travailleurs, dans 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail, corres
ponde au quart des voix. Il estime, en effet, que 
cette. representation s'augmente des voix de cer, 
tains delegues gouvernementaux, par exemple de 
ceux de la Nouvelle-Zelande et de l'Australie. 
L'orateur estime, quant a lui, que cet argument 
n'est pas tres convaincant. La grande majorite 
des gouvernements represente les interets econo
miques et sociaux des employeurs et les delegues . 
gouvl;lrnementaux appuient.frequemment les dele
gues des employeurs. 

L'orateur estime qu'aussi longtemps que durera 
cet etat de choses, les critiques seront justifiees; 
pour lui, il ne cessera pas de douter que la repre
sentation minoritaire des travailleurs soit en 
accord avec la fonction ·de !'Organisation inter
nationale du Travail. 

Il remarque, pour conclure, que le represen
tant des Etats-Unis, en faisant l'eloge du systeme 
capitaliste americain, a emis 1 'idee que !'Organi
sation internationale du Travail devrait s'occuper 
de la protection des · travailleurs dans ·res pays 
ou les entreprises sont nationalisees, ou dans 
lesquels l'Etat est le seul employeur; il a exprime 
des doutes sur la protection accordee aux · tra-

489 



they enjoyed. The United States representative 
should study the "Legislative Series" of the 
International Labour Office. Such a study 
would repay him and would show that through 
their reforms the. Socialist countries had achieved 
the greatest progress in protection of the workers 
and social security and were alone giving con
crete form to the true ideal of social progress. 

Mr. VALENZUELA (Chile) said that his delega
tion was extremely interested in discussing the 
work of the International Labour Organisation 
during the past decade, and particularly in the 
examination o:f appropriate measures to bring its 
work up to date. 

Consideration of the Soviet Union draft reso
lution had, however, removed the discussion to 
another field. The Polish representative had. 
stated the ultimate nature of the problem raised 
by that proposal with admirable clarity. He had 
said that the very nature of the State, according 
to the ideological concept which he accepted; pre
vented it from acting as an impartial arbitrator, 
since it represented the power of those classes of 
society which held economic sway. He had con
cluded therefrom that the adoption of a tripar
tite representation - Governments, employers 
and workers - was inequitable. In the capita
list countries, he had argued, the government and 
the employers constituted a single entity, and 
equal representation should be given to the 
government and employers on the one hand, and 
to the workers on the other. 

Poland embraced the doctrine that an under
standing between the social classes was impos
sible. It was considered in that country that 
all national or international bodies which strove 
to find common ground for agreement between 
employers and '-''orkers, with the State acting as 
arbitrator, were obstacles to social evolution and 
should therefore be opposed. 

The Chilean delegation did not consider it un
desirable that a discussion should be devoted to 
reform of the Internatonal Labour Organisation's 
constitution, to closer supervision of its activity 
and to increased participation by the workers. To 
satisfy the Polish representative's requirements, 
however, it would be necessary to bring about 
the transformation of the State, as represent7 
ing the social class which held power, and to 
transfer power to the hands of the workers. 

Once· the question was clearly put, it would 
be a very simple matter to answer it. If it was 
proposed to examine what the International 
Labour Organisation had or had not done, the 
Council could agree to a .constructive discussion 
on, that subject. But if it was desired that the 
combined representatives of governments and 
employers should be equal in number to those of 
the workers, and if the aim was to make a breach 
in the d~mocratic concept of the State and take 
up the Marxist position, the discussion was un
acceptable .. 

The Soviet Union proposal did not constitute a 
solution such as the Polish representative. desired. 
An ·increase in the numerical representation 
of workers would never mean that economic 

vailleurs et la possibilite qu 'ils ont de se deplacer 
librement. li devrait etudier la « · Serie legis
lative » du Bureau international du Travail: 
Cette etude lui serait tres profitable car elle lui 

· apprendrait que ce sont les pays socialistes qui 
ont realise le plus de progres par leurs reformes 
dans le domaine de la protection ouvriere et de 
la securite sociale, et que seuls ils ont traduit 
dans les faits le veritable ideal du progres social. 

1\L VALENZUELA (Chili) indique que sa delega
tion porte un tres vif interet au debat sur l'amvre 
de !'Organisation internationale du Travail au 
cours des dix dernieres annees, et, en particulier, 
a la recherche des mesures propres a adapter 
son action aux conditions actuelles. 

Mais l'examen du projet de resolution sovie
tique a transporte le debat sur un autre terrain. 
Le representant de la Pologne a indique avec m1e 
nettete admirable le caractere que presente en 
definitive le probleme souleve par ce projet. II 
a dit que, selon la conception ideologique a 
laquelle il adhere, la nature meme de l'Etat fait 
qu'il ne pent agir en arbitre impartial, car il 
est !'expression de la force des classes sociales qui 
detiennent le pouvoir economique. Le delegue de 
la Pcilogne en a deduit qn'il . n'etait pas juste 
d'adopter nne representation tripartite : gouver
nements, employeurs et travailleurs. II a sou
tenu que dans les pays capitalistes, le gouverne
ment et les employeurs forment un seul tout et 
qu'il faut donner une representation egale au 
gouvernement et aux employeurs, d'une part, et 
aux travailleurs, d'autre part. 

La Pologne eponse cette theorie qu'une entente 
entre les classes sociales est impossible. On estime 
dans ce pays que tons les· onganismes nationanx 
on internationaux qui cherchent a trouver nn 
terrain d 'entente entre les employeurs et les tra
vaillenrs, l"'Etat jonant le role d'arbitre, cons
tituent des obstacles a !'evolution sociale et doi
vent par consequent etre combattus. 

La delegation chilienne ne pense pas qu'il 
n'y ait pas interet a consacrer un debat a la 
reforme de la Constitution de !'Organisation 
iriternationale dn Travail, a une meilleure sur
veillance de son activite et a !'augmentation de 
la participation onvriere a ses travaux. Mais, 
pour donner satisfaction. au delegue de la Polo
gne, il faudrait proceder a une transformation 
de l'Etat __: representant la classe sociale qui 
detient le pouvoir - et faire passer le pouvoir 
anx mains des travailleurs. 

Une fois la question posee clairement, il sera 
tres facile d'y repondre. S'il s'agit d'examiner 
ce que !'Organisation internationale du Travail 
a fait on n'a pas fait, le Conseil pourrait accepter 
un debat constructif sur cette question. Mais si 
l'on vent que les delegues des Etats et ceux 
des employeurs reunis soient egaux en nombre 
aux delegues des travailleurs et si le but vise 
est d 'ouvrir nne breche dans la conception demo
cratique de l'Etat et d'adopter la position mar
xiste, on ne saurait accepter la. discussion .. 

La proposition de l'Union sovietique ne cons
titue par une solution conforme au desir du 
representant de Ia Pologne. L'augmentation 
mrmerique de la representation ouvriere mi signi-

490 



- · .... ,· 

power was about to pass into the workers ' .. hands, 
or that a single clas would hold absolute power. 

The Chilean delegation would vote against the 
Soviet Uni.on proposal for that reason- because 
it did not even possess the merit of being Marxist. 

With regard to the concept of the State, it was 
somewhat surprising to find that a group of 
representatives wished to put the other members 
of the Council in the dock, when most of that 
group neither shared the burdens of interna- · 
tional. bodies nor contributed those conciliatory 
ide[l,s which rendered reconstruction possible. 
They came forward to accuse others of doing 
wrong and l'epresenting the interests of Amel'i
can economic monopolies. Such an attitude 
appeared foreigp. to elementary concepts of inter
national co-operation. 

He wished he could share the optimistic belief 
of the Danish representative that the Soviet 
Union resolution constituted an accession in prin
ciple to the International Labour Organisation, 
a~1d that after that Organisation's Constitution 
had been amended the Soviet Union would agree 
to share its financial burdens and would bring to 
it the experience acquired by the working class 
during thirty years under a revolutionary system. 
That would be a very good thing for the Inter
national Labour Organisation and the United 
Nations. Unfortunately, he could not share the 
Danish representative's optimism. 

He reminded the Polish representative that the 
Council. could not discuss ideological concepts 
and that it was useless to submit to it a resolution 
on the value of Marxist principles. Nor could 
the Council express any opinion on the living 
conditions of workers in the so-called popular 
democracies, which provided no statistical data 
such as were supplied to the United Nations by 
other countries. 

When he had read that the Czechoslovak 
Government had authority to direct workers to 
the tasks assigned to them under the economic 
plan, and that at Bratislava ration cards had 
been withdrawn from work·ers who were unwill
ing to carry out those tasks, he had begun to 
have doubts about their fredom to choose their 
own employment. 

On the one hand there was a group of coun
tries which believed in the possibility of social 
understanding and in the State arbitrator; on 
the other, a group which did not believe in social 
understanding and :for whom reforms were 
merely an obstacle in the path of the historical 
evolution :for which they waited, and which they 
reg-al'ded as inevitable. 

He realized that the second group of countries 
was bound to attack the International Labour 
Organisation, because that Organisation had 
shown that social understanding was possible. 

Mr. Mumz (Brazil) recalled his previous com
ment on the history of the International Labour 
Organisation and the International Court of Jus
tice, and said that a false ·interpretation had 
been placed upon it. In pointing out that those 

fiera jamais que le pouvoir economique va passer 
aux mains des travailleurs, ni qll 'une classe 
detiendra seule la totalite du pouvoir . 

. C'est pour cette raison que -la delegation di.l 
Chili votera contl;e la proposition de l'Union 
sovietique, car cette proposition n'a n1.eme pas 
le merite d'etre conforme a la. doctrine marxiste. 

Pour ce qui est de la conception de l'Etat, 
il est un peu surprenant de constater qu'un 
groupe de delegues entende faire jouer le rOle 
d'accuses aux autres membres du Conseil, alors 
que la plupart des pays representes dans ce 
groupe ne participent pas aux charges des orga
nismes internationaux et ne font pas preuve de 
cet esprit de· conciliation qui rend la reconstruc
tion possible. Ils viennent accuser les autres de 
mal a.gir et de representor les interets des mono
poles economiques americains. Cette attitude 
parait etrangere au sentiment eHimentaire de la 
collaboration internationale. 

Il voudrait' croire, comme le representant du 
Danemark, que la resolution de l'Union sovie
tique constitue de la part de celle-ci nne adhesion 
de principe a !'Organisation internationale dn 
Travail, et qu'apres modification de la Constitu
tion de !'Org-anisation, l'Union sovietique accep
tera de participer a ses charges financieres, et lui 
apportera l'experience acquise par la classe 
ouvriere au cours de· trente annees de regime 
revolutionnaire. Ce serait nne tres bonne chose 
pour !'Organisation internationale du Travail et 
pour les Nations Unies. Malheureusement, l'ora
teur ne pent partager l'optimisme du represen
tant du Danemark. 

Il rappelle an representl:int de la Pologne que 
le Conseil ne pent pas discuter des conceptions 
ideologiques et qu'il . est inutile de lui soumettre 
nne resolution sur la valeur des principes mar
xistes. Le Conseil ne pourrait pas non plus emet
tre d 'appreciation sur les conditions de vie des 
travailleurs des democraties dites populair-es, 
puisque celles-ci ne fournissent pas de rensei
gnements statistiques tels que cemc que les autres 
pays communiquent a !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. · 

Quand l'orateur a lu que le Gouvernement 
tchecoslovaque avait pouvoir d'affecter les 
ouvriers aux taches assignees par le plan eco-. 
nomique, quand il a lu qu'a Bratislava on avait 
retire leur carte de rationnement a1L'C ouvriers 
qui ne voulaient pas s'acquitter de ces taches, 
il a con<;U des doutes sur la liberte qui leur etait 
h~issee de choisir leur emploi. 

Il y a, d'une part, un groupe de pays qui 
croient a la possibilite de !'entente entre les 
classes sociales et qui croient au role d'arbitre de 
l'Etat; il y a, d'autre part, un autre groupe de 
pays qui ne croient pas a l'entente des classes 
et pour qui les reformes ne constituent qu'un 
obstacle a !'evolution historique qu'ils attendent 
et qu'ils · croient fatale. 

L'orateur comprend que ces derniers pays doi
vent attaquer !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail, parce que cette organisation a prouve 
que !'entente sociale etait possible. 

M. MUNiz (Bresil) rappelle ce qu'il a dit pre
cedemment du sort de l'Organisation interna
tionale du Travail et de la Cour internationale 
de Justice et declare qu'on a mal interprete ses 
paroles. En soulignant que ces deux orrganismes 

491 



two bodies had survived the vicissitudes through 
which the institutions created by the Versailles 
Treaty had passed, he had not meant, of course, 
that they had remained unchanged. In fact, the 
Statute of the International Court of Justice 
had been modified and recent amendments to the 
Constitution of the International Labour Organi
sation were being ratified by governments. 
However, those were reforms rather than com
plete reconstruction. 

None of the former organs of the League of 
Nations, apart from those two and other minor 
technical commissions, such as the Permanent 
Central Opium Board, had remained in anything 
approaching their previous form. The Interna
tional Court of-Justice had become one Of the 
main organs of the United Nations, and the Inter
national Labour Organisation had become a spe
cialized agency brought into relationship with 
the United Nations. 

But it would not be true to say that the 
changes recently introduced into the Constitution 
of the International Labour Organisation amoun
ted to a complete reshaping of its structure. In 
its more than 30 years of existence the Organi
sation had kept its character as ·a consultative 
agency. Its competence and field of action had 
not been changed. The system of representation 
of member States was the same, and even th'E;l 
form and essence of most of the articles of its 
Constitution had been preserved over the last 
30 years. That was evidence of the vitality and 
value of the Organisation, and of the continued 
interest in it. 

He believed that the tripartite composition of 
the Organisation, which afforded representation 
to governments, employers and labour, had been 
one of the sources of its strength; that was a 
realistic arrangement, because it took into account 
the economic and social structure prevailing in 
the great majority of the member States since 
the end of the First World War. The tripartite 
composition certainly reflected closely the com
position of the majority of States Members of 
the United Nations which also contained the three 
groups - government, employers and labour. 

But if the Organisation was to obtain its ideal 
of universality through the participation of all 
nations, it would be necessary to take into account 
the particular social structure of several countries 
in which the employer class had disappeared, or 
had been replaced by a managerial bureaucracy." 
In respect of those states the tripartite repre
sentation system did not apply; the represen
tation of employers would be fictitious. 

However, that did not mean that the existing 
tripartite composition necessarily resulted in coa
lition of governments and employers against the 
working classes, as had been asserted. Such an 
assertion indicated a total ignorance of the de
bates and discussions that had taken place and 
were taking place in the Committees, Conference 
and Governing Body of the Organisation. In the 

· great majority of cases, the government and wor
kers' groups had consonant views, although it 
was .a tacitly accepted principle that the govern
ment group took an impartial position between 

avaient survecu aux vicissitudes par lesquelles 
sont passees les institutions creees par le Traite 
de Versailles, il n 'a pas voulu dire, bien entendu, 
qu'ils etaient demeures tels qu'ils etaient. En fait, 
le Statut de la Cour internationale de Justice a 
ete modifie et de recents amendements ala cons
titution de !'Organisation internationale du Tra
vail sont en voie d'etre ratifies par les gouver
nements. 1\fais il s'agit la d'une reforme plutot 
que d'une reconstruction complete. 

Aucun des anciens organes de la Societe des 
. Nations, a part ces deux-la et des commissions 
techniques d'importance secondaire, comme le 
Comite central permanent de l'opium, n'est 
demeure, meme approximativement, dans sa 
forme primitive. La Cour internationale de Jus
tice est devenue l'un des organes principaux des 
Nations Unies, et !'Organisation internationale 
du Travail est devenue une institution specia
lisee reliee a !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

1\fais il ne serait pas exact de dire que les chan
gements recemment apportes ala Constitution de 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail consti
tuent une refonte totale de sa structure. Au 
cours de plus de trente annees d'existence, 
!'Organisation a conserve son caractere d'institu
tion consultative. Ni sa competence ni le champ 
de son activite n'ont varie. Le systeme de repre
sentation des Etats qui en sont membres est 
demeure le meme; et la forme et la teneur de la 
plupart des articles de sa Constitution n'ont pas, 
elles-memes, change pendant ces trente annees. 
C'est la une preuve de la vitalite et de la valeur 
de !'Organisation, ainsi que de !'interet que l'on 
continue de lui porter. 

[Jorateur . croit que la composition tripartite 
de cette Organisation, qui permet aux gouverne
ments, aux employeurs et aux travailleurs d'y 
etre representes, a ete l'une des raisons de sa 
force. C'est la une solution realiste, parce qu'elle 
tient compte de la structure economique et sociale 
qui est celle de la majorite des Etats membres 
depuis la fin de la premiere guerre mondiale. 
La composition tripartite refiete certainement 
de fa~on fidele celle de la majorite des Etats 
Membres des Nations Unies, ou existent ces trois 
groupes : gouvernement, employeurs et travail
leurs. 

Mais si !'Organisation devait atteindre son 
ideal d'universalite grace a la participation de 
toutes les nations, il faudrait alors prendre e11 
consideration la structure sociale particuliere de 
plusieurs pays dans lesquels la classe des 
employeurs a disparu ou a fait place a nne 
bureaucratic dirigeante. Dans le cas de ces Etats, 
le systeme de representation tripartite ne pent 
s'appliquer;,la representation des employeurs n'y 
serait qu'une fiction. 

Mais cela ne signifie pas que la composition 
tripartite actuelle aboutisse fatalement a une 
coalition des gouvernements et des employeurs 
contre les classes ouvrieres, comme on l'a affirme. 
Une telle assertion denote une ignorance totale 
des debats et discussions qui se sont deroules 
et ont encore lieu au sein des commissions, de 
la Conference et du Conseil d'administration de 
!'Organisation. Dans la grande majorite des cas, 
le groupe gouvernemental et le groupe ouvrier 
ont eu des vues concordantes, bien que, suivant 
un principe tacitement admis, le groupe gouver-

492 



.' .·. 

labour and employers. Consequently, he couid 
not accept the modification of the Organisation's 
structure that had been suggested. 

The hypothesis that the government group was 
the natural ally of the employers against the 
workers was completely false; moreover, it was 
inconsistent, since the States that advanced it 
claimed that their Governments would always 
defend the interests of the working classes. The 
proposal to give the workers' group a voting 
strength of 50 % was unacceptable to the Bra
zilian delegation and contrary to actual expe
rl.ence within the Organisation. Such an arrange
ment would destroy the balance of represen
tation. It was for the Organisation itself, as a 
specialized agency, to decide, without any injunc
tion from the Council, any modifications that it 
might desire to make to its structure with a view 
to the participation of the States that were unable 
to accept its existing system of representation. 
The discussion in the Council might, however, 
have a certain usefulness, since it would give some 
indication of the conditions and requirements 
necessary to attract non-member countries. 

The argument that the work of the Interna
tional Labour Organisation had not been effec
tive because few · of its conventions had been 
ratified, was misleading. The usefulness of the 
Organis!),tion should not be measured by the 
number of conventions formally ratified, but by 
the influence exerted, directly or indirectly, on 
national labour legislation. The Organisation had 
a commission of international experts which perio
dically examined the actual results of the recom
mendations in its draft conventions. Those 
conventions were often not formally ratified sim
ply because Governments disagreed on points of 
detail; but many of the principles they contained 
were nevertheless embodied in national legis
lation. The social legislation of Brazil had been 
greatly influenced by the principles laid down 
in draft conventions of the International Labour 
Organisation, although that country had rati
fied only a few of them. 

The Organisation had a truly democratic repre
sentation. Undoubtedly structural adaptations 
might become desirable in order to take into 
account the changes in social system that had 
occurred in a number of countries. The Orga
nisation was fully aware of that problem. and was 
debating it extensively within the framework of 
its own organization and Constitution. A solu
tion would undoubtedly be arrived at without 
upsetting the balance of representation in the 
manner proposed, and his delegation would there
fore vote against the Soviet Union draft resolu
tion .. 

lVIr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that the French representative 

nementai ait du avoir une attitude impartiale 
entre employeurs et travailleurs. Aussi l'orateur 
ne peut-il approuver la proposition qui a ete 
faire de modifier la structure de 1 'Organisation. 

L'hypothese qui est a la base de cette propo
sition, a. savoir que le groupe gouvernemental 
serait l 'allie naturel des employeurs contre la 
representation ouvriere, est completement fausse; 
de plus, il y a la quelque chose d'illogique, puis
que ceux qui l'ont formulee soutiennent que leurs 
gouvernements defendront toujours les interets 
de la classe laborieuse. La proposition tendant a 
accorder 50 % des voix au groupe ouvrier est 
inacceptable pour la delegation bresilienne, et 
elle est contraire a ce qu'enseigne !'experience 
meme du fonctionnement de !'Organisation. Une 
telle solution detruirait l'equilibre de la repre
sentation. C'est a !'Organisation elle-meme, en 
taut qu'institution specialisee, de decider, sans 
aucune injonction de la part du Conseil, de toutes 
les modifications qu'elle pent desirer apporter a 
sa structure en vue de rendre possible la partici
pation des Etats qui ne peuvent accepter son 
systeme actuel de representation. II n'en reste pas 
moins que les discussions du Conseil peuvent 
cependant presenter une certaine utilite, en ce . 
sens qu'elles fourniront certaine indication des 
conditions necessaires pour attirer vers !'Orga
nisation les Etats qui n'en sont pas membres. 

C'est un argument fallacieux que de dire que 
les travaux de !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail ont ete inefficaces parce qu'un petit nom
bre seulement des conventions qu'elle a adoptees 
ont ete ratifiees. Ce n'est pas au nombre des 
conventions officiellement ratifiees qu'il faut 
juger de l'utilite de !'Organisation, mais a. !'in
fluence que celle-ci a exercee, directement ou 
indirectement, sur les legislations du travail des 
divers pays. L'Organisation dispose d'une 
commission d'experts internationaux qui examine 
periodiquement les resultats effectifs des recom
mandations qui figment dans les projets de 
conventions. Si ces conventions ne sont pas tou
jours ratifiees ·· officiellement, c'est simplement 
parce que les gouvernements ne peuvent ac
cepter certains points de detail; neanmoins, 
beaucoup des principes qu'enoncent ces conven
tions ont ete incorpores a la legislation natio
nale. C'est ainsi que la legislation sociale du 
Bresil a ete fortement influencee par les prin
cipes poses dans .les projets de convention de 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail, bien 
que ce pays n'ait ratifie qu'un petit nombre de 
ces conventions. 

La representation au sein de !'Organisation · 
est veritablement democratique. Sans doute 
peut-on souhaiter que certains amenagements de 
structure interviennent pour tenir compte des 
changements qui ont pu survenir dans le systeme 
social d'un certain nombre de pays. L'Organisa
tion est parfaitement au fait de ce probleme et 
le discute a fond dans le cadre de son organisa
tion propre et de sa Constitution. On parviendra 
certainement a une solution sans boulever;ser de 
la maniere proposee l'equilibre de la represen
tation, et c'est pourquoi la delegation bresilienne 
votera. contre le pro jet de resolution de l'Union 
sovieti ue. 

M. RUTIUNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes s vietiques) constate que le representant de 

493 



had placed himself in an anibiguous position when 
he had quoted the French proverb les absents 
01it tottjours tort. 1 He had intended to imply 
that since the Soviet Union did not participate 
in discussions of the International Labour Orga
nisation, its representative should not speak on 
that subject in the Council; but in the same 
speech he had admitted that he was absent when 
the Soviet Union representative was making the 
statement to which he referred. 

The French representative was trying to pre
vent criticism that was not based on personal 
experience; but the delegation of the Soviet 
Union believed that every member of the Council 
had the right to speak on any item of the agenda. 
That was why he had decided to speak on the 
Report of the International Labour Organisation. 
Although the Soviet Union.was not a member of 
that 01•ganisation, it was concerned with its work, 
and the proposals of the Soviet Union delegation 
were logical and constructive. 

The representative of Denmark had pointed 
out that the submission of those proposals for 
the democratization of the Oi·ganisation showed 
that the Soviet Union was interested in its work. 
}.[e had also suggested that consideration of the 
Soviet Union draft resolution should be deferred, 
because certain representatives had no instruc
tions from their governments on the subject. 
That proposal was understandable, and might 
well be given consideration; it was not a negative 
proposal, for defm;ment of the question would 
not preclude the subsequent adoption of measures 
for the democratization of the International 
Labour Organisation. 

Thanks to the initiative of the Soviet Union 
delegation in submitting its draft resolution, a 
debate of historic importance had taken place in 
the Council which, in its wide scope, had sur
passed any debates on the International Labour 
Organisation previously held, even in the League 
of Nations when creation of the Organisation had 
been under discussion. The Soviet Union dele
gation's lead in raising a number of practical 
points had also been followed. 

The Soviet Union delegation itself, however, 
had been concerned with the democratization of 
the structure of the International Labour Orga. 
nisation. The draft resolution had provoked a 
number of comments and interpretations, the 
basic aim of all of which was its rejection. 

The representative of New Zealand had pointed 
out that some of the most important trade union 
leaders in· the world had said that they fully 
supported the principles and the aims of the 
International Labour Organisation. But the 
Soviet Union draft resolution did not contain 
even the shadow of a proposal to amend the prin
ciples, aims and purposes of the Organisation; its 
purpose was that the structure should be re
formed, so as help the Organisation achieve those 
aims and purposes and live up to those high 
principles. 

1 See supra, 203rd meeting. 

la Wrance s'est mis dans un mauvais cas en citant 
le proverbe « les absents ont toujours tort » 1. 
II a voulu dire par la que, du moment que 
l'Union sovietique ne participait pas aux discus
sions de l 'Organisation internationale du Travail, 
son representant au Conseil economique et social 
ne devrait pas prendre la parole a1,1 sujet de 
cette Organisation; mais, dans la meme inter
vention, il a admis qu'il etait absent lorsque 
le representant de l'Union sovietique avait pro
nonce le discours auquel il faisait allusion. 

Le representant de la France essaie d'ecarter 
les critiques qui ne seraient pas fondees sur nne 
experience personnelle; mais la delegation de 
l'Union sovietique estime que tout membre du 
Conseil a le droit de se faire entendre sur n'im
porte quel point de l'ordre du jour. C'est pour
quai il s'est resolu a prendre la parole sur le 
rapport de l 'Organisation internationale du 
Travail. QU:oique l'Union sovietique ne soit pas 
membre de cette Organisation, elle s'interesse 
a ses travaux, et les propositions formulees par 
sa delegation sont logiques et constructives. 

Le representant du Danemark a souligne que 
le fait de presenter ces propositions en vue de 
la democratisation de !'Organisation montre que 
l'Union sovietique s'interessait aux travaux de 
celle-ci. II a aussi propose d'ajourner l'examen 
du projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique, 
parce que certains delegues n'avaient pas regu 
d'instructions de leur gouvernement a ce sujet. 
Cette proposition est admissible et merite d'etre 
prise en consideration, parce qu'elle n'a pas un 
caractere negatif et que l'ajournement de la 
question ne s'opposerait pas ace que l'on adopte 
plus tard des mesures de democratisation de 
l 'Organisation internationale du travail. 

Grace a !'initiative qu'a prise la deliigation 
sovietique en presentant son projet de resolution, 
un debat d'importance historique s'est instaure 
au- Conseil, un debat qui depasse en portee tous 
ceux qui, jusqu'ici, ont porte sur !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail, meme ala Societe des 
Nations, quand celle-ci a discute la creation de 
cette Organisation. De meme, la delegation de 
l'Union sovietique a montre la voie en evoquant 
un certain nombre de points d'ordre pratique et 
elle a ete suivie. 

La delegation de l'Union sovietique s'est elle
mem.e preoccupee de la democratisation de la 
structure de !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail. Le projet de resolution qu'elle a pre
sente a provoque un grand nombre d'observations 
et donne naissance a bien des interpretations qui, 
toutes, tendaient essentiellement a son rejet. 

Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande a souli
gne que certains des ch~fs syndicalistes les plus 
importants du monde avaient declare qu'ils 
donnaient leur plein appui aux principes et aux 
objectifs de !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail. l\:Iais le pro jet de resolution de 1 'Union 
sovietique ne contient pas l 'om.bre d 'nne proposi
tion tendant a modifier les principes, les objectifs 
et les buts . de !'Organisation; son objet est de 
reformer la structure de !'Organisation, de 
maniere a aider celle-ci a atteindre ces buts et 
ces objectifs, et de repondre a ces principes 
eleves. 

1 Voir plus haut, 203• seance. 

494 



A number of representatives had said that in 
auy case the Soviet Union did not believe that 
the position of the workers could be improved 
in a capitalist State. That was untrue. If. it 
had been true, the Sovieu Union would hardly 
have supported the world trade union movement. 
History showed that by long and persistent strug
gles trade unions, even in capitalist countries, 
had been able. to obtain such alleviations of the 
workers' lot as the eight-hour day and social pro
tection of labour. It was true that the Interna
tional Labour Organisation did not aim at 
removing the root cause of the low status 
of workers in capitalist countries, which was 
their exploitation as a labour force. Nor did 
the Soviet Union draft resolution attempt 
to include that aim; it only sought to enable 
the Organisation to work more effectively towards 
such improvement of the workers' lot as it might 
achieve within the framework of capitalist coun
tries. 

It was remarkable that the representative of 
the most typically capitalist country in existence 
seemed to see eye to eye with the representative 
of a Labour Government. Both the United States 
and New Zealand representatives had energeti
cally opposed the Soviet Union draft resolution. 
He did not deny their right to defend the rights 
of employers; nor would he contradict the New 
Zealand representative's statement that it had· 
been possible, through the International Labour 
Organisation, to take decisions which protected 
the rights of employers. But the Soviet Union 
delegation considered that the International 
Labour Organisation, which had been created to 
deal with labour questions and to safeguard· the 
rights of workers, should continue to make that 
its only task. When, in response to the Council's 
request to examine the question of trade union 
rights,l it had linked that question with the right 
of association of employers, it had only confused 
the issue and introdueed problems which could 
be dealt with by other organizations. 

The Soviet Union draft resolution did not vio
late the principle of tripartite representation, 
but only recommended an increase in the repre
sentation of those elements which were best 
informed about the main probh'lms with which 
the Organisation was concerned. The New 
Zealand and other representatives had argued 
that increase was unnecessary, as a number of 
Labour Governments which often voted with 
the workers' representatives were already repre
sented in the Organisation. That might be so, but 
he did not understand why the representatives 
of Labour Governments should fear increased 
workers' representation, which would· strengthen 
rather than weaken their own position in the 
Organisation. It was unjust and inappropriate 
that employers and workers should so far have 
enjoyed equal representation, since they did not 
have the same interest in labour problems. For 

1 See Economic and Social Cownoil Resolutions, fourth 
session, resolution· 52 (IV). 

Un certain nombre de deiegues out dit qu'en 
tout cas l'Union sovietique ne croit pas qu'il soit 
possible d'ameliorer la situation des travailleurs 
dans un Etat capitaliste. Ce n'est pas exact. Si 
c'etait vrai, l'Union sovietique n'aurait pas 
accorde son appui au mouvement syndical man
dial. L'histoire montre que, a travers des luttes 
longues et constantes, les syndicats, meme dans 
les pays capitalistes, out pu obtenir des adoucis
sements du sort des travailleurs qui vont jusqu'a 
la journee de huit heures et la protection sociale. 
II est vrai que l'011ganisation internationale du 
Travail ne vise pas a extirper la cause profonde 
de la condition peu satisfaisante des travailleurs 
dans les pays capitalistes, qui est leur exploita
tion en tant que force de main-d'amvre. Le projet 
de resolution de 1 'Union sovietiqu~ ne se propose 
pas non plus cet objectif; il cherche seulement 
a permettre a !'Organisation de s'employer plus 
efficacement a ameliorer le sort des travaillel+rS, 
dans la 'mesure ou c'est possible dans le cadre des 
pays capitalistes. · 

Il est digne de remarque que le representant 
du pays le plus typiquement capitaliste qui existe 
semble voir les chases du meme ceil que le dele
·gue d'un gouvernement travailliste. Le represen
tant des Etats-Unis et celui de la Nouvelle
Zelande out l'un et l'autre pris energiquement 
position contre le. pro jet de resolution de l'Union 
sovietique. L'orateur ne refuse pas a ces repre
sentants le droit de defendre les employeurs; 
il ne se propose pas non plus de contredire le 
delegue de la N ouvelle-Zelande, qui a declare 
qu'il a ete possible, grace a !'Organisation inter-. 
nationale du Travail, d'adopter des decisions qui 
protegent les droits des employeurs. Mais la deHi
gation de. l'Union sovietique considere que 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail, qui a 
ete creee pour s'occuper des questions du travail 
et pour sauvegarder les droits des travailleurs, 
devrait continuer a se horner a cette unique 
tache. Lorsque, pour repondre a la demande du 
Conseil qui l'avait priee d'etudier la question des 
droits syndicaux 1, l'Organisati'on a lie cette ques
tion a celle du droit d'association des employeurs, 
elle n'a fait qu'embrouiller la question et empie
ter sur des problemes qui pouvaient etre traites 
par d'autres organisations. 

Le projet de resolution de l'Union sovietique 
n'enfreint pas le moins du monde le principe de 
la representation tripartite; il recommande seule
ment de renforcer la representation de ceux de 
ses elements qui sont le mieux informes des pro
blemes essentiels dont doit s'occuper !'Organisa
tion. Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande et 
ceux d 'autres pays out fait valoir que ce · renfor
cement n'etait pas necessaire, puisque un certain 
nombre de gouvernements travaillistes, dont les 
delegues melent souvent leurs bulletins a ceux 
des delegues ouvriers, sont deja representes dans 
1 'Organisation. Il est possible qu 'il en soit ainsi, · 
mais

1 
il ne comprend pas pourquoi les represen

tant~ de gouvernements travaillistes pourraient 
redouter le renforcement de la representation 
ouvriere, renforcement qui, loin d'affaiblir la 
situation de ces gouvernements au sein de !'Orga
nisation, ne pourrait que la rendre plu~ forte. 

1 Voir Resol·utions au Conseil eoono·miqu(! et social, 
quatrieme session, resolution 52 (IV). . 

495 



the latter, labour was the only source of income, 
while for the former it was only one factor in 
profit-making. 

There were other organizations to protect and 
.further the interests of employers and owners of 
capital; in the International Bank for R-econ
struction and Development and in the Internatio
nal Monetary Fund, labour enjoyed no represen
tation at all, let alone €qual represBntation with 
capital. Yet it could not be maintained that the 
utilization of capital was of no interest to workers. 

He recognized that it would be um'€alistic to 
exclude employers' representatives from the 
International Labour Organisation, since an em
ployer class did Bxist in the majority of its 
member countries Those employers, and their 
powerful organizations, such as the National 
Association of Manufacturers in the United 
States, had great influence in their respective 
countries and in their governments. It would 
therefore be unrealistic to exclude them from 
the Organisation, or to expect them not to 
defend their own intBrests in it. The principle 
of tripartite representation was a recognition 
of the existence of the different approachBs to 
the question of labour. It was a recognition that 
the interests of labour and capital could not be 
merged. If they could be merged th€re would 
be no need for representation of more than one 
element. 

In defending the principle of tripartite repre
sentation, th€ United States representative had 
told the Council an old wives' tale, according to 
which there were no classes in the United States, 
the work€rs being employers and the employers 
often b€ing workers. If that was so, why was 
it necessary for the United States to send diffe
rent representatives to the International Labour 
Organisation, one representing the employers, one 
the workers and one the government 1 It would 
be interesting to hear how those representatives 
were selected, if there was no difference between 
employers' organizations and trade unions. 

The United States representative had denied 
that production resources and wealth in his coun
try were concentrated in the hands of a small 
clique. But statistics published in the United 
States showed the large proportion of national 
production and nat.ional income belonging to a 
few oil, stBel, railway and insurance companies. 
The United States representative had also spoken 
of the prosperity of the middle classes in his coun
try. But statistics relating to the number of 
agricultural holdings in the year 1930 as com
pared to 1920 clearly showed pauperization of 
proprietors of medium-sized holdings in favour 
of small-holders and proprietors of large hol
dings. The United States representative, who 

II est injuste et inexact de dire que, jusqu'a 
present, les employeurs et les travailleurs ont 

. dispose d'une representation egale, puisql,l'ils ne 
sont pas egalement interesses aux problemes du 
travail. Pour les salaries, le travail est leur seule 
source de revenu; tandis que, pour les 
employeurs, il n'est qu'un des elements de la 
realisation des benefices. 

Il existe d'autres organisations, dont le role est 
de proteger et de favoriser les interets des 
employeurs et des capitalistes; dans la Banque 
internationale pour la reconstruction et le deve
loppement et dans le Fonds monetaire interna
tional les travailleurs ne sont pas representes du 
tout, sans meme parler d'une representation equi
valente a celle des capitalistes. Et cependant, on 
ne saurait soutenir que les problemes relatifs a 
!'utilisation des capitaux n'interessent pas les 
tra vailleurs. 

Il reconnait que ce serait manquer du se:ris des 
realites que de vouloir exclure de !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail les representants des 
employeurs, du moment qu'il existe une classe 
d'employeurs dans la majorite des pays membres 
de cette Organisation. Ces employeurs, ainsi que 
leurs puissantes associations, telles que la N atio- · 
nal Association of Manufacturers au..'\: Etats-Unis, 
jouent un rol€ influent dans leurs pays respectifs 
et leurs gouvernBments. Ce serait done manquer 
du sens des realites que de les exclure de !'Orga
nisation on d'attendre d'eux qu'ils ne defendent 
pas leurs propres interets au sein de cette 
Organisation. L'application du principe de la 
representation tripartite n'est que la reconnais
sance du fait qu'il y a differentes manieres 
d'aborder la question du travail. C'est la 
reconnaissance du fait que les interets des 
travailleurs et les interets des capitalistes ne pen
vent pas se confondre. Si ces interets pouvaient 
se confondre, il n'y aurait pas besoin que plus 
d'un element soit represent€. 

En defendant le principe de la representation 
tripartite, le delegue des Etats-Unis a raconte au 
Conseil un conte de bonnes femmes: il n'y aurait 
pas de classes sociales aux Etats-Unis, les 
ouvriers etant patrons et les patrons souvent 
ouvriers. S'il en etait ainsi, pourquoi les Etats
Unis auraient-ils besoin d'envoyer a !'Organisa
tion internationale du Travail des representants 
differents, l'un pour representer les em.ployeurs, 
un autre pour representer les travailleurs et un 
troisieme pour representer le gouvernement ? Il 
serait interessant de savoir com.ment ces repre
sentants sont choisis, et s'il n'y a pas de desaccord 
entre les associations patronales et les syndicats. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis a nie par 
ailleurs que, dans son pays, les sources de pro
duction et les richesses soient concentrees entre 
les mains d'un petit groupe d'individus. Mais 
les statistiques publiees aux Etats-Unis montrent 
la vaste proportion de la production nationale 
et du revenu national qui est aux mains d'un 
petit nombre de societes petrolieres, m.etallurgi
quBs, ferroviaires et de compagnies d 'assurances. 
J_~e representant des Etats-Unis a parle aussi de 
la prosperite dont jouiraient les classes moyennes 
dans son pays. Mais les statistiques de 1930 rela
tives au nombre des proprietes rurales, comparees 
ayec celles de 1920, montrent.nettement l'appau
vrissement des proprietaires d'exploitations de 

496 



., 

would certainly not be ignorant of these figures, 
could not claim that there had been a levelling of 
incomes. 

The greater authority and prestige which 
would accrue to the International Labour Orga
nisation if its structure were modified in the 
manner proposed by the Soviet Union delegation, 
would further increase its effectiveness. It was 
obviously no fault of the Organisation that many 
of its conventions had not been ratified by govern
ments; the blame rested with those government 
representatives who supported, in the Organisa
tion, conventions which they knew would be 
unacceptable to their governments at home. If 
the prestige of the Organisation were enhanced, 
it would be possible to mobilize public opinion tp 
demand the ratification of its conventions.· 

The only reply he had received as to why the 
Organisation's conventions were not ratified by 
governments had been the frank statement of the 
United States representative that his government 
was not in a position to ratify them until they 
had received the approval of the separate States 
of the Union. Indeed, of the 86 conventions 
adopted by the Organisation, the United States 
Government had ratified only 5, which was fewer 
than any other member government. In that 
respect the constitutional position of the United 
States Government could only be deplored, espe
cially as it provided a ready-made pretext when
ever that Government was for any reason unwill
ing to ratify a convention. 

Billt his object in referring to the United States 
representative's very frank statement had been 
rather to point out his foresight in urging that 
the International Labour Organisation should 
concentrate its attention on other countries. For 
the United States representative realized that, 
because of the constitutional position of his 
Government, the Organisation could not apply 
itself to United States labour problems with any 
hope of success. Otherwise it might have been 
thought it could usefully examine why, in a coun
try which had been enriched during the war, 
there were more than 2,000,000 unemployed; that 
was a higher level of unemployment than in any 

· ether country except Italy, which had been 
devastated during the war and was anyhow eco
nomically poor. That problem of unemployment 
in the United States was extremely important, 
but he agreed with the United States representa
tive that it would be futile for the International 
Labour Organisation to examine it. 

The United States representative had argued 
that the Organisation should therefore devote its 
attention to labour problems in other countries, 
and especially in countries where the government 
was the sole employer. He himself did not know 
of any such. country; with regard to the Soviet 
Union, few possessed first-hand knowledge of that 

moyenne etendue au benefice des petits proprie
taires et des· possesseurs de vastes domaines.· Le 
representant des Etats-Unis, qui n'est certaine
ment pas sans connaitre ces chiffres, ne peut pas 
pretendre que, dans ce cas-la, il y ait eu nivelle
ment des revenus. 

L'accroissement d'autorite et de prestige dont 
ben&.ficierait !'Organisation internationale du 
Travail, si sa structure etait modifiee de la fagon 
que propose la delegation de l'Union sovietique, 
aurait pour effe.t de rendre l'action de cette orga
nisation plus efficace. Ce n'est evidemment pas 
la faute de !'Organisation si beaucoup des 
conventions elaborees par elle n'ont pas ete rati
fiees par les gouvernements; on ne peut en 
blamer que les delegues gouvernementaux qui, 
au sein de !'Organisation, donnent leur appui a 
des conventions qu'ils savent inacceptables pour 
leurs gouvernements. Si l'on rehaussait le pres
tige de l'Orgari.isation, on pourrait. mobiliser 
l'opinion publique pour qu'elle exige la ratifica
tion des conventions adoptees. 

La seule reponse qu'il ait re(}Ue a sa question : 
« Pourquoi les conventions de !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail n'ont-elles pas ete 
ratifiees par les gouvernements ? >> a ete donnee 
par le representant des Etats-Unis, qui a tres 
franchement declare que son Gouvernement ne 
pouvait pas ratifier ces conventions tant qu 'elles 
n'ont pas ete approuvees par les divers Etats de 
la Federation. En realite, sur les 86 conventions 
adoptees par !'Organisation, le Gouvernement des 
Etats-Unis n'en a ratifie que 5, c'est-a-dire moins 
qu'aucun autre Etat Membre. A cet egard, on ne 
peut que deplorer la situation dans laquelle la 
Constitution des Etats-Unis met ce pays, d'autant 
plus que cette situation fournit un pretexte 
commode chaque fois que, pour une raison quel
conque, le gouvernement n 'est pas dispose a 
ratifier une convention. 

Mais, en faisant allusion a la declaration tres 
franche du representant des Etats-Unis, il voulait 
surtout souligner la prevoyance dont celui-ci a 
fait preuve en insistant pour que !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail porte son attention sur 
d'autres pays que le sien. C'est que le represen
tant des Etats-Unis con(}oit parfaitement que, 
en raison de la situation constitutionnelle de son 
gouvernement, !'Organisation ne peut s'occuper 
avec la moindre chance de succes des probleme~ 
du travail dans ce pays. Sans cela, on aurait pu 
juger utile que !'Organisation recherche pour
quai, dans un pays qui s'est enrichi pendant la 
guerre, il y a plus de deux millions de chomeurs, 
c'est-a-dire pourquoi le chomage y est propor
tionnellement plus eleve que dans aucun autre 
pays, a !'exception de l'Italie qui, elle, a ete 
ravagee durant la guerre. et qui est, d'ailleurs, 
un pays economiquement faible. Ce probleme du 
chomage aux Etats-Unis est d'lWe extreme impor
tance, mais l'orateur estime, comme le represen
tant des Etats-Unis, qu'il serait vain pour !'Orga
nisation intermitionale du Travail. de l'etudier. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis a done soutenu 
que !'Organisation devrait consacrer son atten
tion aux problemes du travail dans d'autres ·pays, 
et notamment dans les pays ou le Gouvernement 
est l'unique employeur. L'orateur ne connait pas 
lui-meme un seul pays qui se trouve dans ce cas; 

· en ce qui concerne l'Union sovietique, bien peu 

497 
32 



country, .and he had observed that the extent of 
such knowledge was in inverse proportion to the 
amount of talk on the subject. 

The Soviet Union had a system of communal 
ownership· of the means of production, which 
meant they were not centralized or concentrated 
l.n the hands of a small number of families. The 
private exploitation of labour, the exploitation by 
man of his fellow-man, had been eliminated. 
In the Soviet Union the workers worked for 
their own benefit, not to enrich a small clique. 
The right to work was guaranteed, and there was 
no unemployment. The socialist form of owner
ship included not only ownership by the State in 
the name of the people, but also ownership by a 
co-operative or a group, and even private owner
ship, provided that it could not be used for the 

· exploitation of labour. 

Such were the main features of the Soviet 
Union employment system, in which trade unions 
played an extremely important part. Not a 
single wages question could be settled without 
reference to them; if their agreement could not 
be obtained, the question was referred to a labour 
court for arbitration. He would not enlarge 
further on the trade union system in the Soviet 
Union. He merely wished to point out that the 
main characteristic of the Soviet employment 
system was not the operation of labour by the 
State. Labour was also employed by co-opera
tives and other organizations. Even when the 
State was the employer, it delegated its powers 
to economic organizations which paid their profits 
to the State, but were free to operate indepen
dently and work in close contact with the trade 
unions. 

That system. was not in force in other coun
tries, but the Soviet Union firmly believed in the 
possibility of co-existence of the two systems. 
International co-operation could only be based on 
a recognition of that possibility. For those rea
sons the Soviet Union delegation was not propos
ilig that the principle of tripartite representa
tion in the International Labour Organisation 
should be abandoned. But it did believe that it 
was necessary to make the Organisation more 
democratic by increasing the representation of 
the workers, so as to enable it to solve the labour 
problems which had been the reason for its esta
blishment. 

Mr. THORP (United States of .America) re
called that the Soviet Union representative had 
suggested that the amount of talk about a foreign 
country was in inverse proportion to the spea
ker's knowledge of it. He regretted that that 
suggestion had been made, since it was clearly the 
policy of his government to make available for 
public information and discussion as much infor
mation as possible relating to the United States, 
and he felt that the statistics quoted by the Soviet 
Union representative had come originally from 
that source. It was difficult to carry on a dis
cussion when one's own cards lay face up on the 
table but the cards held by others were not so 
exposed to public view. 

de gens possedent sur son compte des informa
tions de premiere main,.et il s'est apergu que ceux 
qui en parlent le plus sont ceux qui en savent le 
moins sur ce pays. 

ii/Union sovietique a institue un systeme de 
propriete collective des moyens de production, 
ce qui signifie que ces moyens de production ne 
sont pas centralises ou rassembles entre les mains 
d'un petit nombre de families. L'exploitation pri
vee de la main-d'muvre, !'exploitation de l'homme 
par l'homme, a ete supprimee. Dans l'Union 
sovietique, les ouvriers travaillent pour eux et 
non pour enrichir un petit groupe d'individus. 
Le droit au travail y est garanti, et il n'y a pas 
de chOmage. La forme socialiste de la propriete 
ne se reduit pas ala formule de l'Etat proprie
taire au nom du peuple, .mais englobe aussi la 
propriete cooperative ou celle d'un groupe, et 
meme la propriete privee, pourvu que celle-ci ne 
puisse servir a !'exploitation de:la main-d'muvre. 

Tels sont les traits essentials du regime de 
l'emploi dans l'Union sovietique, regime dans 
lequel les syndicats jouent un role extremement 
important. Il n'y a pas un seul probleme de 
salaires qui puisse etre resolu sans leur etre 
defere. Si leur consentement ne peut etre obtenu, 
la question est soumise a un tribunal arbitral 
du travail. L'orateur ne veut pas s'etendre 
davanta,ge sur le systeme syndical en vigueur 
dans l'Union sovietique. Il desire simplement 
souligner que la caracteristique principale du 
regime sovietique de l'emploi n'est pas que l'Etat 
dispose de la main-d'reuvre. Celle-ci est egalement 
employee par des cooperatives et par d'autres 
organisations. Meme dans les cas ou c'est l'Etat 
qui est l'employeur, il delegue ses pouvoirs a des 
organismes economiques, qui versent a l'Etat 
leurs benefices, mais qui ont liberte d'operer de 
fagon independante, et qui travaillent en etroite 
collaboration avec les syndicats. 

Ce systeme n'existe pas dans d'autres pays, 
mais l'Union sovietique a la conviction que les 
deux systemes peuvent coexister. La coopera
tion internationale n'est possible que si l'on 
admet cette possibilite. Telle est la raison pour 
laquelle la delegation de l'Union sovietique ne 
propose pas qu'on renonce au principe de la 
representation tripartite dans la structure de 
!'Organisation internationale du Travail. Cepen
dant, elle croit neeessaire de donner a cette orga
nisation un caractere plus democratique en 
augmentant la representation des travailleurs, si 
l'on veut la hlettre a meme de resoudre les pro
blemas du travail dont la solution a ete la raison 
meme de sa creation. 

M. THORP (Etats-Unis d'.Amerique) rappelle ce 
qu'a dit le representant de l'Union sovietique, a 
savoir que ceux qui parlent le p~us d'un pays 
etranger sont ceux qui en savent le moins a son 
sujet. II regrette que ces paroles aient ete pro
noncees, car il est certain que le Gouvernement 
des Etats-Unis a pour politique de fournir a 
l'opinion et aux discussions . publiques le plus 
d'informations possible au sujet de ce pays; et il 
a le sentiment que les statistiques citees par le 
representant de l'Union sovietique proviennent 
de cette source. II est difficile de discU.ter cartes 
sur table tandis que les cartes des autres dele
gues demeurent invisibles au public. 

498 



The Soviet Union representative had suggested 
he had told an old wives' tale. He repeated, and 
stood by, what he had said about classcgroups in 
the United States and other countries with simi" 
lar economic structure; the clearly defined and 
antagonistic class--groups that had been predicted 
had not emerged, but there was interlocking 
and overlapping between the different classes and 
the enormous middle class that had developed 
owned not only personal property but also a 
share of the means of production. 

Certain statistics had also been adduced. It 
was unnecessary for him to point out the mislead
ing conclusions that could be drawn from sta
tistics. Those reached by the Soviet Union repre
sentative, however, were the result of certain 
common errors, which it might be as well to 
correct. 

The existence of very large corporations in the 
United States did not mean either that all the 
means of production were owned by a few indi
viduals or that those few received all the profits. 
He repeated that ownership and profits were 
widely distributed. The total number of corpo
rations in the United States was roughly half a 
million. In this connexion, it was worth remind
ing the Council that 40 % of all corporate pro
fits made in the United States in 1947 had been 
swallowed up in taxation, as compared with the · 
20 % or less that total taxation represented of 
national income. A further 40 % of profits had 
been ploughed back into industry to provide for 
future development. Distributed profits had 
amount.ed to about 3 to 4 % of the total national 
income. It could not, therefore, be reasonably 
implied that re-organization of the country's eco
nomic system and a different allocation of the 
comparatively small proportion of national 
income distributed as profits, could have an 
appreciable effect on individual incomes and on 
the standard of living of the workers. 

The suggestion of the Soviet Union represen
tative that the middle class in the United States 
was being impoverished, and the illustration he 
had taken from agriculture, were not borne out by 
the figures for the years 1935-1945, which showed 
very little change' in the proportion of agri
cultur~l holdings according to size. Any change 
which had occurred over an earlier period could 
be explained by technological developments bring
ing a shift to new types of farm produce. 

The figure of two million unemployed in the 
United States had been contrasted with complete 
absence of unemployment in the Soviet Union. 
But figures for the United States included tem
porary unemployment caused by change f:rom 
one job to another; and in every country there 
was bound to be some labour turnover. It was 
more significant to point out that employment in 
the United States was at the record level of over 
60 million, which many had anticipated would 
be difficult to attain for. a number o~ years after 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique lui a 
reproche d'avoir raconte au Conseil une histoire 
de bonnes femmes. Il repete et il maintient ce 
qu'il a deja dit des groupes sociaux qui existent 
aux Etats-Unis et dans d 'autres pays de struc
ture economique analogue: ces classes nettement 
t'ranchees et opposees que l'on avait predites 
n'ont pas surgi, mais il y a imbrication et che
'vauchemeut entre les differentes classes, et l'im
portante classe moyenne qui s'est, constituee ne 
possede pas seulement des biens personnels, mais 
aussi une part des moyens de production. 

Certaines statistiques ont egalement ete invo
quees. Il n'a pas besoin de faire remarquer queUes 
conclusions errom'ies on peut tirer des statisti
ques. Cependant, celles du delegue de l'Union 
sovietique resultent de certaines erreurs tres 
repandues, qu'il n'est peut-etre pas mauvais de 
rectifier. 

Le :fait qu'il existe aux Etats-Unis des societes 
tres importantes ne si,gnifie pas que. tous les 
moyens de production soient .la propriete d'un 
petit nombre d'individus, ni que ce petit nombre 
d'individus pergoive tous les benefices. Il repete 
que la propriete et les benefices se trouvent repar
tis entre un grand nombre de personnes. On 
compte au total, aux Etats-Unis, environ un demi
million de societes enregistrees. A cet egard, il 
n'est pas sans interet de rappeler au Conseil 
que 40 % de tousles benefices realises aux Etats~ 
Unis en 1947 par ces societes ont ete absorbes 
par le fisc alors que !'ensemble des sommes per
gues par le fisc s'eleve, au maximum,. a 20 % 
du revenu national. Une autre part de 40 % des 
benefices a ete reversee dans le circuit industrial 
en vue du developpement a venir. Les benefices 
repartis ont atteint a peu pres 3 . ou 4 % du 
revenu national global. On ne saurait done 
raisonnablement insinuer qu 'une reorganisation 
dil systeme economique du pays et qu'une repar
tition differente de la partie relativement faible 
du revenu national distribuee sous forme de 
benefices puissent exercer une influence appre
ciable sur le revenu individuel et sur le niveau 
de vie des travailleurs. 

L'assertion du representant de l'Union sovie" . 
tique, qui veut qu'aux Etats-Unis la classe 
moyenne soit en voie d'appauvrissement, et 
Pexeniple qu'il en trouve dans la situation des 
agriculteurs, ne sontpas confirmes par les chiffres 
relatifs aux annees 1935-1945; ces chiffres man
trent au contraire qu'il ne s'est guere produit de 
changement dans la situation des exploitations 
agricoles quant a leur superficie. Les change- . 
ments qui ont pu se produire' anterieurement 
peuvent s'expliquer par les progres techniques 
qui ont amene les agriculteurs a s'orienter vers 
la production df.1 nouveaux types de denrees 
agricoles. • 

Le representant de l'Union sovietique a mis 
en opposition !'existence de deux millions de 
chOmeurs aux Etats-Unis et !'absence de tout 
chOmeur dans son pays. Mais les chiffres publies 
par les Etats-Unis comprennent le chOmage tem
poraire, du au changement d'un emploi a un 
autre et, dans tousles pays, il est inevitable qu'il 
y ait des mouvements de main-d'reuvre. Il est 
plus significati£ de souligner que le nombre des 
travailleurs poU:rvus d'un emploi atteint aux 
Etats-Unis le chiffre record de plus de 60 mil~ 

499 



the war.. If unemployment had been an economic 
problem in the United States; it would surely 
have emerged in political and trade union dis
cussions ·and in Congress. 

He was glad that the Soviet Union representa
tive had discussed the question of protection of 
workers in the Soviet Union. He had not him
self mentioned any country in that connexion, but 
had only wished to draw attention to the pro
blem of protection of workers against exploita
tion by the State. That problem existed, whe
ther State ownership was complete or limited only 
to a small number of enterprises. He objected 
strongly to the assumption that exploitation of 
labour arose only under a system of private 
oW'nership. If a government was, for example, 
desirous of promoting rapidly the expansion of 
an industry in any one direction, for political, 
economic or other reasons, the interests of wor
kers directly or indirectly affected might well 
suffer. 

It would have been interesting to hear fur-· 
ther details about the types. of protection against 
exploitation to which the Soviet Union represen
tative had referred : for example, about the safe
guards afforded by the employment of labour by 
an independent economic administration rather 
than by the Sta:te; about the position and the role 
of the trade unions vis-a-vis the gover.pment and 
the economic administrations; and about the limi
tations imposed by legislation on the government 
in defining the terms and conditions of employ
ment. All those, and other questions, could use
fully be examined by the International Labour 
Organisation, and it would be of great interest to 
know how far the solutions found for them by the 
Soviet Union were applicable to other countries. 

He did not wish to repeat his arguments in . 
support of the tripartite structure of the Inter
national Labour Organisation. Support for that 
structure had varied in strength, but there had 
been no disagreement regarding the importanc·e 
of the Organisation, and he hoped that that 
would be a source of gratification to its officials. 

The United States delegation· considered it 
undesirable for the Council to undertake to 
change the structure of the Organisation or to 
act on the assumption that government represen
tatives to it represented the interests either of 
employers or of workers, rather than of their 
countries as a whole. Adopti~ of an alteration 
'in the structure of the International Labour 
Organisation which would impose an obligation 
on government representatives to represent the 
interests of a particular group in the American 
economy, rather than the general welfare of the 
United States, which the United States delegation 
considered to be their proper role, would appear 
to them a most unhappy change. 

Mr. MoNGE (Peru) said that his Government 
was represented in the International Labour 

lions, . chiffre que bien des gens consideraient 
comme difficile a atteindre pendant un certain 
nombre d'annees apres la guerre. Si le chomage 
constituait reellement un probleme economique 
aux Etats-Unis, cela n'aurait pas manque 
d'apparaitre au cours des debats des reunions 
politiques et syndicalistes, ainsi qu 'au Congres. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis est heureux que 
le representant de l'Union sovietique ait parle 
de la question de la protection daris ce pays. 
L'orateur n'avait fait mention d'aucun pays, a ce 
propos, desirant seulement attirer !'attention sur 
le probleme de la protection des travailleurs 
contre !'exploitation de la main-d'amvre par 
l'Etat. Le probleme existe, que la propriete 
d'Etat soit complete ou qu'elle se borne a un 

' petit nombre d'entreprises. Il s'oppose energique-
. ment a l'idee qu'il ne peut y avoir exploitation 

de la main-d'amvre que sous un regime de pro- . 
priete privee. Si un gouvernement, par exemple, 
est desireux de developper rapidenient une indus
tria dans une certaine direction, pour des raisons 
politiques, economiques ou autres, les interets des 
ouvriers directement ou indirectement interesses, 
peuvent fort bien en patir. 

Il aurait ete interessant que le representant 
de 1 'Union sovietique fournit de plus amples 
details sur les methodes de protection contre 
!'exploitation dont il a parle : par exemple sur 
les garanties que presente l'emploi de la main
d'ceuvre par une administration economique 
independante et non par l'Etat; sur la situation 
et le rOle des syndicats a l'egard du gouverne
ment et des administrations economiques; · enfin, 
sur les limitations que la legislation impose au 
gouvernement dans la fixation des conditions 
d'emploi. Toutes ces questions, et bien d'autres, 
pourraient etre utilement etudiees par !'Organi
sation internationale du Travail, et il serait 
extremement interessant de savoir dans queUe 
mesure les solutions que l'Union sovietique a 
apportees a ces problemes peuvent s'appliquer a 
d'autres pays. 

n ne veut pas reprendre les arguments qu'il a 
deja avances en faveur de la structure tripartite 
de !'Organisation internationale du Travail. Cette 
structure a ete plus ou moins chaleureusement 
approuvee, mais personne n 'a mis en doute l 'im
portance de" !'Organisation, et il espere que ce 
sera· un element de satisfaction pour ses fonc
tionnaires. 

·La delegation des Etats-Unis estime qu'il ne 
convient pas que le Conseil entreprenne de modi
fier la structure de !'Organisation ou qu'il parte 
de !'hypothese que les representants gouverne
mentaux qui y siegent defendent les interets des 
employeurs ou ceux des travailleurs, plutot que 
les interets generaux de leur pays. Si l'on deci
dait de modifier la structure de !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail en imposant aux· dele
gues gouvernement~ux !'obligation de representer 
les interets d'un groupe determine de l'economie 
des Etats-Unis, au lieu de defendre la prosperite 

· de !'ensemble de la nation comme la delegation 
des Etats-Unis estime que c'est vraiment :un role, 
un tel changement semblerait a ce pays particu- . 
lierement inopportun. 

M. MoNGE (Perou) rappelle que son gouverne
ment est rypresente ·au sein de !'Organisation 

'500 



Organisation, and Peru occupied the chair of the 
Governing Body. That was why he was taking 
the fioor. 

The efficacy of the Organisation within the 
limits of its Constitution was no longer the ques
tion at issue; what the Council had to deal with 
was a resolution calling for a complete change of 
structure, and the repercussions that would have 
on the political organization of States. 

It was a perfectly ordinary resolution dealing 
with a specialized agency, and proposing an 
increase of workers' representation from , 
33 1/a % to 50 %; hilt it involved a new form 
of interriallegislative organization. People who, 
like himself, lived in . democratic countries; were 
inclined to doubt whether the proposal provided 
for properly balanced representation in a tripar
tite agency such as the International Labour 
Organisation. He must say quite frankly that 
he would not be able to vote for it unless he had 
sufficient time to receive instructions based on a 
decision of the Peruvian Parliament, which was 
the final and deciding instance in his country. 

Those considerations would normally cause him 
to abstain; but the problem was of great impor
tance to every country from the constitutional 
point of view, and a representative would be in
curring very heavy responsibilities if he abstained 
owing to lack of precise instructions; In the 
absence of adequate instructions, he would there
fore be bound to vote against the Soviet Union 

· draft resolution, pending reconsideration of the 
problem. · 

Mr. D'AscoLI (Venezuela) said that great inte
rest attached to the report of the International 
Labour Organisation ; broadly speaki;ng, he 
approved of it. 

With regard to the Soviet Union draft reso
lution, he felt unable, without his Government's 
consent, to support the revision of a fundamental 
agreement. The Soviet Union proposal exceeded 
the scope of his instructions, and consequently 
he could not vote for 'it. 

Mr. PmLLIPS (United Kingdom) welcomed the 
fact that the Soviet Union representative had 
apparently been convinced, by what had been 
said during the debate, that the International 
Labour Organisation was a most useful institution 
which commanded the support of the masses of 
the world's workers. 

On one important point, however, the Soviet 
Union representative had not correctly interpret
ed the views expressed by the Council - namely, 
that it would be wisest to leave the Internatio
nal Labour Organisation to decide its own struc- · 
ture, both on the practical ground that govern
ments, employers and workers were all represen
ted in it, and on the constitutional ground that 
its structure had already been formally approved 
by governments. He wished to place on record 
that his Government supported that view. 

internationale du Travail et que c'est le Perou 
qui assume la presidence du Conseil. d'adminis
tration. C'est la raison pour laquelle l'orateur 
intervient dans le debat. 

Ce n'est plus de l'efficacite de l'action de 
!'Organisation, dans les limites de sa Constitution 
actuelle, qu'il est question desormais; il s'agit 
maintenant pour le Conseil de se prononcer sur 
une resolution qui tend a la revision complete de 
sa structure et des repercussions que cette revi
sion aurait sur !'organisation politique des Etats. 

C'est une resolution d'un type parfaitement 
courant, relative a une institution specialisee, et 
proposant de porter de 33 % a 50 % la repre
sentation des travailleurs; mais elle aurait pour 
consequence une nouvelle forme d'organisation 
legislative. Les gens qui, comme lui, vivent dans 
des pays democratiques, sont enclins a se 
demander si cette proposition assurerait une 
representation bien equilibree dans une institu
tion tripartite telle que !'Organisation interna
tionale du Travail. L'orateur doit dire en toute 
franchise qu 'il ne sera pas en mesure de voter en 
sa faveur, s 'il ne dispose pas du temps necessaire 
pour recevoir des instructions basees sur la deci
sion du Parlement peruvien, car c'est a celui-ci 
qu'appartient, en fin de compte, la decision dans 
son pays. 

Ces seules considerations l'engageraient a 
s'abstenir; mais le probleme dont il s'agit pre
sente une grande importance pour tous les pays 
du point de vue constitutionnel, et un delegue 
qui s'abstiendrait de voter, sous pretexte qu'il 
n'a >pas d 'instructions precises, encourrait une 
lourde responsabilite. Faute d'instructions pre
cises, le delegue du Perou sera done contraint 
de voter contre le projet de resolution de 
l'Union sovietique, en attendant que le probleme 
soit soumis a un nouvel examen~ 

M. n'AscoLI (Venezuela) declare que le rapport 
de !'Organisation internationale du Travail pre
sente beaucoup d'interet. D'une fa~on generale, 
il l 'approuve. 

Quant au pro jet de resolution de 1 'Union sovie
tique, il ne saurait, sans l'assentiment de son 
Gouvernement, souscrire ala revision·d'un accord 
fondamental. La proposition de l'Union sovie
tique deborde de beaucoup le cadre des instruc
tions qu'il a re~ues, et par consequent il ne 
saurait voter pour cette proposition. 

M. PmLLIPS (Royaume-Uni) constate avec 
plaisir que le representant de l'Union sovietique 
semble avoir ete convaincu, par ce qui a ete dit 
au cours du debat, de l'extreme utilite de l 'Orga
nisation internationale du Travail, qui a l'appui 
des masses ouvi-ieres du monde entier. 

Il est un point important, toutefois, sur lequel 
le representant de l'Union sovietique n'a pas 
interprete de fa~on exacte les opinions e.'Cprimees 
par le Conseil; c'est que le plus sage serait de 
laisser a !'Organisation internationale du Travail 
le soin de decider de sa propre structure, d'abord 
pour cette raison d'ordre pratique que les gou
vernements, les employeurs et les travailleurs y 
sont tous representes, et ensuite pour cette 
raison d'ordre juridique que sa structure actuelle 
a deja ete officiellement approuvee par les gouver
nements. L'orateur tient a bien marquer que 
telle est l'opinion de son Gouvernement. 

501 



In view of the full debate which.had already 
taken place, he would refrain :from commenting 
on more than t:wci of the interesting points raised 
on the nature of industrial democracy. He could 
not agree with the Soviet Union representative 
in believing there was a complete cleavage· be. 
tween industry and the workers. In the United 
'Kingdom, labour was regarded as one of the part. 
ners Jn industry. The Labour Government had 
come to power by peaceful and democratic means 
and had established .unparalleled conditions for 
the working classes. It was along those lines that 
development would continue in the United King
dom. 

Nor could he agree with the Soviet Union 
representative that it was a matter for comphiint 
that the International Labour Organisation had 
thought fit to extend the right of association to 
employers. His country. attached the. greatest 
importance to enjoyment of the right of associa. 
tion both by workers and by employers, as the 
very basis of ip_dustrial relations. Modern 
history had showil that suppression of the em
ployer's right of assoeiation was followed by an 
attack on the trade unions as well. Peaeeful and 
democratic industrial development .could only be 
based on the right of free and independent expres
sion .of opinion by all parties. The particular 
impnrtance of the International Labour Organi. 
sation was that it permitted representatives of 
employers' and workers' organizations to voiee 
full and frank criticism of the policies of their 
governments. 

Mr. DICH (Denmark) observed that he had 
a.lready asked indirectly whether it could be 
expected that the Soviet Union would join the 
International . Labour Organisation if its draft 
resolution were adopted and the structure of the 
Organisation modified as suggested. He felt it 
was important to have an answer to that question. 
If the answer was clearly in the affirmative, the 
Council could. proceed to vote on the draft reso
lution. But if not, since representatives had no 
:i,nstructions from their governments as to how 
they should proceed, the decision should be post
poned. 

· Mr. ARUTIUNIAN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) said that he would have been in a 
position to reply to that question if members of 
the Council had shown· any willingness to sup. 
port the Soviet Union draft resolution. In the 
circumstances, however, any expression of opinion 
on his part would be without result or signi
ficance. 

He had not said that he considered the Inter
national Labour Organisation useful in its exist
ing form. The Soviet Union Government consi
dered that it was ineffective and did not promote 
the purposes of democracy or of international 
co-operation. 

The United Kingdom representative had misin
terpreted him on another point. To think that 
the Soviet Union Government considered it prac-

Comme le probleme a deja ete pleinement 
discute, il se contentera·de faire ·des observations 
sur deux des points interessants qui ont ete 
souleves au sujet de la nature de la democratie 
industrielle. Il ne peut admettre que, comme le 
soutient le representant de !'Union sovietiqYe, il 
y ait une separation complete entre l'industrie 
et les ouvriers. Dans le Royaume-Uni, la main-

. d'a:mvre est consideree comme un associe de 
l'industrie. Le Gouvernement travailliste · est 
arrive au pouvoir par des voies pacifiques et 
democratiques, et il a fait aux classes laborieuses 
une situation qui n'a pas d'egale. C'est dans ce 
sens' que !'evolution en ce · domaine continuera 
dans le Royaume-Uni. 

Il ne pent davantll.ige s'accorder avec le repre
sentant de !'Union sovietique a considerer qu'il 
y a lieu de reprocher a !'Organisation interna. 
tionale du .Travail d'avoir juge bon d'etendre le 
droit d'a8sociation aux employeurs. Le Royamne
Urii estime qu'il est d'une grande importance 
que les employeurs, · comme les · travailleurs, 
jouissent du .droit d'association, car c'est la a 
son avis la base meme des relations industrielles. 
L'histoire moderne a montre que, quand le droit 
d 'association est retire aux employeurs, les syn
dicats eux aussi ne tardent pas a etre attaques 
a leur tour. Un developpement pacifique et demo
cratique de l 'industrie ne peut etre base que sur 
le droit; pour toutes · les parties, d'exprimer 
libremeri.t et en toute independance leur opinion. 
Ce qtl.i fait que.l'Organisation internationale du 
Travail a une importance particuliere, c'est que 
les representants des organisations d'employeurs 
et de travailleurs y penvent critiquer a fond 
et franchement la politique de leur gouverne-
ment. · 

M. DICH (Danemark) ·fait observer qu'il a deja 
demande indirecte1nent si l'on pouvait escompter 
que I 'Union sovietique adhererait a I 'Organisation 
internationale du Trl:l,vail, au cas ou son projet 
de resolution. serait adopte et ou la structure 
de cette organisation serait modifiee dans le sens 
propose par ce pays. Il estime · qu'il importe 
qu'une reponse. soit donJiee a cette question. Si 
cette. reponse est resohiment affirmative, le 
Conseil p~ut passer au vote sur le projet de 
resolution. Sinon, les delegp.es n'ayant pas d'ins. 
tructions de leurs Gouvernement sur ce qu'ils 
doivent faire, il y a lieu d'ajourner la decision. 

. . 

M. ARUTIDNIAN (Union des Republiques socia
listes sovietiques) declare qu'il aurait ete en 
:tnesure de repondre a la question posee si les 
membres du · Conseil s'etaient montres disposes 
a donner le moindre appui au projet de resolu· 
tion de l'Union sovietique. Mais, dans les 
ci'rconstances presentes, tout ce qu'il pourrait 
dire ne menerait a aucun resultat et n'aurait 
alicun sens.' · 

Il n'a pas dit qu'il considerait que l'Organi-
. sation internationale du Travail fut utile sous 
sa forme actuelle. Le Gouvernement de l'Union 
sovietique estime que cette Organisation est · 
inefficace et ne contribue pas a la realisation des 
objectifs de. la democratic ou de Ia cooperation 
internationale. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni l'a mal com
pris sur un autre. point. Penser que le Gouverne
ment de l'Union sovietique croit a la possibilite 

502 



ticable to deprive employers in capitalist conn
fries of the right of association showed ignorance 
of the real position. He had only said that that 
was: ncit a question :for the International Labour 
Organisation; there were other organizations to 
deal with it. He assured the United Kingdom 
representative that he was in no way attempting 
to threaten the right of association of British 
employers. He would point out, however, that 
the British Labour Government had started a 
policy of nationalization. · If that policy was pur
sued consistently to the end, there would be no 
class of employers but only of ex-employers or of 
renti&rs, living on the income derived from money 
paid them in compensation. The right of asso
ciation of employers would then be meaningless. 

Mr. PmLLIPS. (United Kingdom) pointed out 
that it had never been suggested by his Govern
ment that all industry would be nationalized. 
The right of association of employers would con
tinue to remain of' paramount importance. 

In any case, nationalization did not abolish 
employers, but replaced private owners by an 
independent board, acting on behalf of the State
owner, which conducted negotiations with labour 
in the ordinary way. In that connexion he 
recalled that the Soviet Union had itself .. at one 
time been a member of the International Labour 
Organisation and had presumably sent employers' 
representatives to it. 

The PRESIDENT put to the vote the Soviet Union 
draft resolution on the Report of the Internatio
nal Labour Organisation. (E/973). 

The resolution was rejected by 11 votes to 3, 
with 3 abstentions. 

The PRESIDENT proposed the following draft 
resolution, which he put to the vote : 

"The Economic and Social Council 
"Expresses its appreciation of the Second 

· Report of the International Labour Organisa
tion to the United Nations." 

The draft resolution proposed by the President 
was adopted by 14 votes· to .none, with 4 absten
tions. 

The PRESIDENT said that the Council's lengthy 
and most significant· debate had reminded him of 
the United Nations San Francisco Conference, at 
which the International Labour Organisation had 
been much discussed. 

On that occasion the United Kingdom delega
tion had proposed the inclusion of a reference to 
the International Labour Organisation in the first 
paragraph of Article 55 of the Charter. 1 It had 
also proposed the addition to Article 57 of a fur
ther paragraph which read : "In view of its tri
partite constitmtion, the International Labour 
Organisation should, subject to the provisions of 

1 See United Nations Conference on International 
Organization. Vol. 10, page 308. 

de retirer aux employeurs le droit d'association 
dans les pays capitalistes, c'est montrer qu'on 
igriore tout de la situation reelle. Tout· ce qu'il 
a dit, c'est.:que la question ne .releve pas de la 
competence de l'Org·anisation internationale du 
Travail et qu'il existe d'autres organisations pour 
la traiter. Il peut assurer le representant du 
Royaume-Uni qu'il n'essaie pas le moins du 
monde de menacer le droit d'association des 
employeurs britanniques. Il voudrait toute:fois 
:faire remarquer que le Gouvernement travailliste 
du Royaume-Uni a entrepris une politique de 
nationalisation. Si cette politique est poussee 
jusqu'a son terme logique, il n'y aura plus une 
classe d'employeurs, mais seulement une classe 
d' « ex-employeurs » ou de « rentiers », vivant 
des interets de l'argent qui leur aura ete verse 
a titre de compensation. Le droit d'association 
des employeurs n'aura plus alors aucun sens. 

M. PHILLIPS (Royaume-Uni) fait observer que 
le Gouvernement n'a jamais laisse entendre que 
toute l 'industrie serait nationalisee. Le droit . 
d'association des employeurs continuera a conser
ver une extreme importance. 

En tout cas, la nationalisation ne supprime 
pas les employeurs; elle rem place les p.roprie
taires prives par un conseil de direction agissant 
au nom de l'Etat-proprietaire, qui negocie avec 
les ouvriers de la fac;on habituelle. A ce propos, 
l'orateur rappelle que l'Union sovietique a elle
meme ete autrefois membre de !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail et que sans doute elle 
y envoyait alors des representants employeurs. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix le projet de reso
lution de l 'Union sovietique relatif au rapport de 
l 'Organisation internationale du Travail (E/973). 

La resolution est repoussee par 11 voix contre 3 
et 3 abstentions. 

Le PRJ~SIDENT propose au Conseil le projet de 
resolution suivant et le met aux voix. 

« Le Conseil economique et social, 
« Prend acte avec satisfaction du deuxieme 

rapport presente par .!'Organisation interna
tionale du Travail a !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies. » 

Le projet de resolution propose par le Presi
dent est adopte par 14 voix sans opposition, avec 
4 abstentions. 

Le PRESIDENT declare que la longue et tres 
importarite discussion qui vient de se derouler 
au sein du Conseil lui a rappele la Conference 
des Nations Unies a San-Francisco, au cours de 
laquelle on a beaucoup discute !'Organisation 
internationale du Travail. 

La delegation du Royaume-Uni avait alors. 
propose de mentionner !'Organisation interna
tionale du Travail dans le premier alinea de 
l'Article 55 de la Charte 1. Elle avait propose 
egalement d'ajouter a !'Article 57 un nouveau 
paragraphe ainsi conc;u : « Etant donnee sa cons
titution tripartite, !'Organisation internationale 
du Travail devrait, sous reserve des dispositions du 

1 Voir Conference des Nations Unies po~w !'organisation 
internationale, vol. 10, p. 347. · · 

503 



paragraph 2 above, be brought into special rela
tionship with the Organisation and should be 
an important instrument throughtwhich should be 
pursued the object of securing for all improved 
labour standards, economic advancement and 
social security.';! That proposal had received 
the support of many Latin American countries. 

The United Kingdom proposals had been dis
cussed in -at least three meetings of Committee 
II/3, and had been only reluctantly withdrawn 
by the United Kingdom delegation. Moreover, 
it was stated in the records that « while it was 
considered inappropriate to single out any one 
organization for mention [in the Charter] there 
was widespread recognition that the Internatio
nal Labour Organisation will be one of those 
brought into relationship with the Organisa
tion."2 Most of the speakers in th.e Committee 
had affirmed their belief that the International 
Labour Organisation had done extremely valuable 
work between the two wars and that it had 
proved itself to be the most effective of the inter
national organizations set up in 1919. 

It was therefore most proper, and consonant 
with the tradition of the Council, that it should 
have examined the work of the International 
Labour Organisation as thoroughly as it had 
done. He hoped that the debate just concluded 
would be the first of a series of similar examina
tions of the work of all the specialized agencies. 

The meeting rose at 1.30 p.m. 

TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, on 
Thursday, 19 Aug~st 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President : Dr. Charles MALIK 

54. Continuation of the discussion 8 on 
the election of one-third of mem
bers of functional commissions 
(E/883, E/948 and E/Inf/21/Rev.l) 

Second ballots 

The PRESIDENT, referring. to the elections held 
at the two hundred and second meeting of the 
Council, said that it was necessary to take second 
ballots to fill the remaining vacancies on the 
Economic and Employment Commission, the 
Transport and Communications Commission, the 
Social Commission and the Commission on the 
Status of Women. He asked Mr. Thorn (New 
Zealand) and Mr. Rudzinski (Poland) to act as 
tellers. 

1 See United Nations Conference on International 
Organization, Vol. 10, page 312. 
. 2 Ibidem, . page 171. 

3 Resumed from the 202nd meeting. 

pamgraphe 2, etre rattachee specialement a 
!'Organisation et devenir liD . instrument de 
grande importance grace auquel il serait possible 
d'assurer a tous !'amelioration des conditions de 
travail, le progres economique et la securite 
sociale » I. Cette proposition a re11u, a l'epoque, 
l'appui de nombreux pays de !'Amerique latine. 

Les propositions du Royaume-Uni ont ete dis
cutees pendant trois seances au moins du Comite 
II/3, et la delegation du Royaume-Uni ne les a 
retirees qu'a contre camr. En outre, il a ete men
tionne dans le compte rendu que, « tout en 
admettant qu 'il ne convient pas de mentionner 
specialement une organisation determinee dans la 
Charte, un grand nombre de membres reconmtis
sent que !'Organisation internationale du Travail 
sera l'une de celles qui seront rattachees a !'Orga
nisation » 2. Au Comite, la plupart des orateurs 
ont exprime la conviction que I 'Organisation inter
nationale du Travail avait realise une ceuvre 
extremement utile entre les deux guerres et 
qu'elle s'etait averee la plus efficace des organisa
tions internationa;les creees en 1919. 

II etait done indique, et il etait conforme aux 
traditions du Conseil, que le Conseil examinat les 
travaux de !'Organisation internationale du Tra
vail de fa11on aussi appro:fondie qu'il vient de le 
:faire. Le President espere que ce debat n'est que 
le premier d'unel serie d'examens analogues, qui 
porteront s11r les travaux de toutes les institu
tions specia;lisees. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 30. 

DEUX CENT SIXIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le jeudi 19 aout 1948, a 15 heures 

President : M. Charues MALIK 

54. Suite de Ia discussion relative a 
I' election d'un tiers des membres des 
Commissions techniques 3 (E/883, 
E/948 et E/Inf/21/Rev.l) 

Deuxieme tour de scrutin 

Le PRESIDENT rappelle !'election qui a eu lieu 
a la 202• seance du Conseil et indique qu 'il est 
necessaire de proceder a un deuxieme tour de 
scrutin pour pourvoir les sieges encore vacants 
de la Commission des questions economiques et de 
l 'emploi, de la Commission des Transports et 
Communications, de la Commission des questions 
sociales ~et de la Commission de la condition de 
la femme. II demande a M. Thorn (Nouvelle
Zelande) et a M. Rudzinski (Pologne) de faire 
office de scrutateurs. 

1 Voir Conference des Nations Unies pour l'organisation 
internationale, vol. 10, p. 312. 

2 Ibid., p. 171. 
8 Reprise de la discussion de la 202" seance. 

504 




